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President’s Message

2011 was a year of signifi cant progress on many fronts for Guyana Goldfi elds Inc. The Company was in a strong 
fi nancial position to meet its objectives for 2011 including on-going exploration programs at both Aurora and 
Aranka resulting in new resource upgrades at both properties,  advancing the Aurora Feasibility Study and
proceeding with preliminary construction and development activities, and obtaining a Mineral Agreement and
Mining License from the Government of Guyana. The milestones that were completed this year signifi cantly 
strengthened the Company’s value as a whole and further confi rm the robustness of our assets.

The Aurora Gold Project is rapidly advancing towards the development stage with the completion of a Feasibility 
Study expected in the second quarter of 2012. Extensive drilling at Aurora for 2011 totaled 307 holes and 101,425 
meters. The Feasibility Study evaluation period was extended throughout the year to allow for more infi ll drilling 
of key zones within the “Golden Square Mile”.  Accordingly, a revised resource estimate was issued for Aurora 
in September which confi rmed a total of 5.71 million ounces of measured and indicated resources and the high 
grade nature of the open pit material at over 3 g/t Au. Through the successful completion of drilling in 2011, the
Company was able to consolidate and strengthen the resource model as well as better defi ne the known
mineralization to allow the development of a solid mine plan for the Aurora Gold Project.

Total drilling at Sulphur Rose in the Aranka properties over the year included 75 holes and 28,356 meters. The 
2011 drilling program concentrated on infi ll drilling in order to increase the confi dence level of the initial resource
identifi ed in 2010. The Company successfully completed and issued a new resource estimate in December
consisting of 277,580 ounces of gold in the indicated category and 289,250 ounces of gold in the inferred
category. Further strategic exploration will continue near Sulphur Rose and at other prospective target areas within 
a 5-km radius with the goal of increasing resources outside of the known discovery.  

We remain committed to the highest health, safety, social and environmental responsibility standards and continue
to work with the Guyanese Government, the International Finance Corporation of the World Bank Group,
and local communities in those aspects. The Company has grown towards becoming a developer and eventually
a producer and has increased its initiatives in Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability. As a result,
Guyana Goldfi elds was awarded a Mineral Agreement and its main Mining License to operate and build the
Aurora Gold Project. This extremely important milestone considerably de-risked the project since it allows
the advancement of the mine development and operation under a clear and stable fi scal and royalty
regime. This historic landmark agreement for the Company and Guyana, which strikes a fair and reasonable
balance of taxation and royalties for gold mining, sets the stage for future large scale gold mining operations and 
reaffi rms the Company’s view that Guyana is “open for business”.

Development of the Aurora mine is expected to commence upon the completion of the Feasibility Study in the 
second quarter of 2012 and construction is expected to take approximately 24 months, with commercial gold 
production expected in late 2014. The mine is expected to have a positive impact on the economy of Guyana by 
optimizing employment, training, and generating business opportunities for local suppliers and service providers. 
Guyana Goldfi elds is dedicated to becoming the leading corporate citizen and a productive partner in the future 
of Guyana’s economy.

Once again, we extend our appreciation to our shareholders and stakeholders for their continued support over 
the past year. We expect to generate additional value as we reach a number of new milestones and commence 
development in 2012 while continuing organic growth from successful exploration programs at both Aurora and 
Aranka. 

Sincerely,
 

Claude Lemasson, P.Eng., MBA
President and Chief Operating Offi cer, Director
Guyana Goldfi elds Inc.

to our shareholders
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management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the fi nancial condition and results of
operations of Guyana Goldfi elds Inc. (“Guyana Goldfi elds” or “Company”) constitutes management’s review of 
the factors that affected the Company’s fi nancial and operating performance for the year ended October 31, 2011. 
References to “Guyana Goldfi elds” in this MD&A refer to the Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole.
This MD&A has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of National Instrument 51-102 – Continuous 
Disclosure Obligations.

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited annual consolidated fi nancial statements of the 
Company for the year ended October 31, 2011, together with the notes thereto, as well as the audited annual 
consolidated fi nancial statements for the year ended October 31, 2010, together with the notes thereto. Results 
are reported in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise noted.

The audited annual consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally 
accepted accounting principles (“Canadian GAAP”). In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which consist 
only of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Information 
contained herein is presented as at January 26, 2012, unless otherwise indicated.

For the purposes of preparing this MD&A, management, in conjunction with the Board of Directors, considers the 
materiality of information. Information is considered material if: (i) such information results in, or would reasonably 
be expected to result in, a signifi cant change in the market price or value of Guyana Goldfi elds common shares 
(“Common Shares”); or (ii) there is a substantial likelihood that a reasonable investor would consider it important
in making an investment decision; or (iii) it would signifi cantly alter the total mix of information available
to investors. Management, in conjunction with the Board of Directors, evaluates materiality with reference to all 
relevant circumstances, including potential market sensitivity.

Further information about the Company and its operations is available on Guyana Goldfi elds’ website at
www.guygold.com or on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The Company is a reporting issuer under applicable securities legislation in each of the provinces of Canada and its 
outstanding Common Shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “GUY”.

COMPANY BUSINESS
The Company is a Canadian-based mineral exploration and development company primarily focused on the
acquisition, exploration and development of gold deposits in the Guiana Shield of South America. The Company 
has one advanced development stage project, subject to a proposed bankable feasibility study, the Aurora gold 
project located in Guyana (the “Aurora Project” or the “Project”). The Company owns a 100% interest in the 
Aurora Project, subject to a net smelter return royalty (“NSR”) currently stated at 5% or 8%, depending on the 
price of gold, payable to the Guyana Geology and Mines Commission (the “GGMC”). The Company has held its 
interest in the Aurora Project since 1998 and is required to pay an annual fee to the vendor of US$100,000 for as 
long as Guyana Goldfi elds maintains an interest in the Aurora Project, up to a maximum of US$1,500,000. A total 
of US$700,000 has been paid to date. See also “Project Activities”, and “Risk Factors” below.

The Company also holds a contiguous 307,000 acre land package located in the Aranka district of Guyana
approximately thirty kilometres northeast of the Aurora Project, known as the “Aranka Properties”. The Aranka 
Properties consist of four separate properties known as Sulphur Rose, North Ridge, Wynamu and Parika Hills.
See also “Project Activities”.

In 2010, the Company purchased from Newmont Overseas Exploration Limited (“Newmont”), a 70.1%
participating interest and all of its rights and obligations under an agreement dated September 27, 2005, between 
Newmont, Strata Gold Corporation and StrataGold Guyana Inc., which established a venture known as the Arakaka 
Property located in Guyana. On May 19, 2011, Takara Resources Inc. elected to exercise its joint venture rights and 
to purchase this interest. The transaction was completed in June 2011.

3

AnnualReport_Inside_2012_FINAL.indd   3 12-03-09   5:27 PM



management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

HIGHLIGHTS AND MILESTONES
(a) Project development

• Work continues on the Aurora Project bankable feasibility study slated for completion and press release in 
late February 2012.

• On November 18, 2011, the Company signed a Mineral Agreement (“MA”) with the Government of Guyana
and has received the Mining Licence for the Aurora Project. The MA details all signifi cant fi scal, property
development, import-export procedures, taxation provisions and other related conditions for the continued 
exploration, mine development and operation of the Aurora Project.

Signifi cant terms include:

• Mining royalty of 5% on gold sales at a price of gold of less than US $1,000/oz;

• Mining royalty of 8% on gold sales at a price of gold at or above US $1,000/oz;

• Corporate income tax rate of 30% and no withholding tax on interest payments to lenders; and, 

• Duty and value added tax exemptions on all imports of equipment and materials for all continuing
 operations at the Aurora Project, including the construction and operation of a planned port facility,  
 road and power improvements and the construction and operation of the mine.

The Mining Licence is the Company’s permit to build and operate the Aurora Project. The document is valid 
starting immediately for an initial 20-year term with provisions for extension on application by the Company.

• On February 28, 2011 and again on September 8, 2011, the Company announced updated mineral
resource statements for its Aurora Project. See “Project Activities” below.

• During the year ended October 31, 2011, the Company incurred exploration and project development
expenditures of approximately $37 million, up from approximately $31 million in the prior year. See “Project 
Activities” and “Liquidity, capital resources and business prospects” below.

• Work on the Aurora Project during the year ended October 31, 2011 encompassed approximately $31 million
for infi ll drilling, the feasibility study, the purchase of property and equipment and civil and infrastructure
development. The Company is now geared towards a development decision and project fi nancing. In addition,
Guyana Goldfi elds intends to begin construction work on mine site facilities and the mill after funds have 
been raised. See “Liquidity, capital resources and business prospects” below.

• The Company has spent approximately $6.3 million during the year ended October 31, 2011, on
ongoing drilling and assaying on the Aranka Properties, as well as the purchases of certain related equipment.

• On December 14, 2011, the Company announced an updated mineral resource estimate for its wholly
owned Sulphur Rose property, part of the Aranka Properties. See “Project Activities” below.

• On July 7, 2011, Guyana Goldfi elds completed the sale of its Peters Mine and Aremu Mining Permits
located in Guyana, South America to Guyana Precious Metals Inc. (“Guyana Precious”), for a purchase price 
of US$2,400,000, payable in cash at closing.

• In a separate transaction, Guyana Precious had agreed to purchase Guyana Goldfi elds’ 70.1%
participating interest in the Arakaka property, also located in Guyana, for a purchase price of US$3,734,000,
payable in cash at closing. On May 19, 2011, Takara Resources Inc. elected to exercise its right to purchase the 
70.1% interest held by Guyana Goldfi elds in the Arakaka Property. The transaction was completed in June 
2011. As a result, the Company has no ongoing interest, obligation or liability with respect to this property.
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management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

(b) Financial
• At October 31, 2011, Guyana Goldfi elds had working capital of approximately $40 million

(October 31, 2010 – approximately $65 million). The Company had approximately $41 million in cash and 
bank-backed guaranteed investment certifi cates (October 31, 2010 - $66 million). The decrease in cash was 
largely due to ongoing exploration, development and operating activities. See “Liquidity, capital resources 
and business prospects” below.

• On April 4, 2011, the International Financial Corporation, a member of the World Bank Group focused on
private sector investments in developing countries, completed the exercise of 1,730,000 warrants to acquire 
1,730,000 Common Shares for total subscription proceeds of $7,612,000.

PROJECT ACTIVITIES

Aurora Project

Defi nitive Feasibility Study

The defi nitive feasibility study work is nearing completion. Prior to release, management has commenced an
intense and rigorous independent fi nal peer review; the results of the feasibility study are scheduled for release in 
late February 2012. A fi nal National Instrument 43-101 (“NI 43-101”) compliant technical report will be submitted
within the following 45-day required period from the date of announcement and made available on SEDAR at 
www.sedar.com and the Company website.

The Company signed a MA and received the Mining Licence for the Aurora Project, as disclosed under “Project
Development” under subheading “Highlights and Milestones”. The MA and Mining Licence signal the commitment
of the Government of Guyana and Guyana Goldfi elds to the development of the Aurora Project. This is an
extremely important milestone for the Company as it will allow the advancement of the mine development project 
under a clear and stable fi scal and royalty regime.

Resource Estimate for the DFS

Guyana Goldfi elds reported a revised mineral resource statement for the Aurora Project on February 28, 2011. The 
estimate was prepared by SRK Consulting (Canada), Inc. (“SRK”) of Toronto, Ontario in accordance with NI 43-101 
and provided an update to SRK’s previous resource estimate. Subsequently on September 9, 2011, the Company 
further updated its mineral resource statement for the Aurora Project to include all drilling completed to the end of 
May 2011. For further information regarding the above mineral resource estimate, please refer to the press release 
dated September 9, 2011 available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The defi nitive feasibility study is scheduled for completion at the end of February 2012 and will be based on the 
measured and indicated categories of this revised resource estimate. The main purpose of drilling for the fi rst half of 
2011 was to consolidate and strengthen the resource model as part of the feasibility study efforts as well as better 
defi ne the known mineralization to allow the development of a solid mine plan for the Aurora Project.

Highlights include 5.71 million ounces in the Measured & Indicated categories, including about 2.2 million ounces 
for the Open Pit and 3.5 million ounces for the Underground; and confi rmation of the high grade nature of the 
Open Pit material at over 3 grams per tonne. A total of 1.17 million ounces in the Inferred category have been 
identifi ed but will not be included in the feasibility study as per NI 43-101 regulations (Table 1).
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management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

Table 1: Resource Estimate

September 2011

Gold Price (US$) $1,200/oz Quantity (Mt) Grade (g/t) Gold (M oz)

Measured & Indicated Resources

O/P 20.22 3.34 2.18

U/G 26.82 4.09 3.52

TOTAL 47.04 3.83 5.71

Inferred Resources

O/P 3.48 3.41 0.39

U/G 6.49 3.74 0.78

TOTAL  9.97  3.63  1.17

*Cutoff grade: 0.40 g/t Au for O/P and 1.80 g/t Au for U/G.

Note: The following references are made: Open pit = O/P; Underground = U/G

Between January and June 2011, Guyana Goldfi elds drilled an additional 163 core boreholes throughout the
Aurora Project, the majority targeting existing auriferous zones as infi ll with the objective of improving the
confi dence in the geological continuity of the gold mineralization.

Structural geology investigations, geological modeling and information from the infi ll drilling completed during this 
period, support a better defi nition of the structures hosting the gold mineralization within all the gold mineralized 
zones, and consequently improve the confi dence in the geological continuity of the gold mineralization.

Limited deep drilling at Rory’s Knoll (located within the Aurora Project) confi rms the continuity of the gold
mineralization to a depth of 1,550 metres below the surface and support vertically extending the mineral resources by 
over 200 metres. Compared to the February 2011 resource statement, total reported Measured and Indicated tonnes 
at Rory’s Knoll increased from 34.79Mt to 36.38Mt at a slight reduction in grade from 3.97 g/t Au to 3.79 g/t Au.

Infi ll drilling completed on the other auriferous zones at the Aurora Project (Aleck Hill, Mad Kiss and Walcott 
Hill termed the “satellite deposits”) prompted revision to the geological interpretation. The boundaries of the 
gold mineralization were revised to take into account the revised geological interpretation, thereby improving the
confi dence in the continuity of the gold mineralization. Previously poorly defi ned and new auriferous structures 
were intersected by the new drilling information. Compared to February 2011 resource statement, total reported 
Measured and Indicated tonnes within the satellite deposits increases from 7.38Mt to 10.66Mt at an increased 
grade from 3.79 g/t Au to 3.82 g/t Au.

The additional drilling has improved the Company’s confi dence in the geological continuity of the mineralization. 
Guyana Goldfi elds is also continuing off-site infrastructure construction activities and will be in a position to start 
the mine development after the completion of the defi nitive feasibility study and project fi nancing.

For fi scal 2011, the Company had budgeted expenditures of $15-$20 million for the Aurora Project. During fi scal 
2011, the Company has spent approximately $24 million on its Aurora Project.

The Company has not developed a fi scal 2012 budget since it is concentrating on the completion of the defi nitive 
feasibility study for the Aurora Project, results of which are scheduled for release near the end of February 2012. 
Once management has completed its review of both capital and operating costs as set forth in the feasibility study, 
the Company will adopt a budget and determine its fi nancing requirements.
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management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

Aranka Properties

Continued reconnaissance and mapping work around the concession area have identifi ed several zones of gold 
mineralization trends that have close affi nities to the Sulphur Rose deposit. In addition, approximately 35 kilometres
north from Sulphur Rose, reconnaissance work and stream sediment sampling at the Wynamu prospect have
identifi ed a very broad alteration zone measuring approximately 3km by 2km. This area has been selected as high 
priority for detailed grid soil sampling and trenching and work will continue throughout 2012.

Sulphur Rose

On December 14, 2011, the Company announced the completion of an updated Mineral Resource Estimate for 
the Sulphur Rose property. The 2011 drilling program was concentrated on infi ll drilling in order to increase the 
confi dence level of the mineral resource.

The reported resource contains 277,580 oz of Au in the indicated category, including 275,550 oz of Au for the 
open pit. A total of 289,250 oz of Au have been identifi ed in the inferred category (see resource table below).
A cut-off grade of 0.28 g/t Au was used for the open pit and 1.83 g/t Au was used for the underground.

Guyana Goldfi elds expects to grow Sulphur Rose and potentially combine it with other nearby discoveries
within the Aranka Properties.

Sulphur Rose Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resource

Indicated Quantity (Tonnes) Au Grade (g/t)  Contained Au (ounces)

Open Pit  8,250,000  1.04  275,550

Underground  30,000  2.10  2,030

Total  8,280,000  1.04  277,580

Inferred  Quantity (Tonnes)  Au Grade (g/t)  Contained Au (ounces)

Open Pit  5,120,000  1.14  187,710

Underground  1,210,000  2.61  101,540

Total  6,330,000  1.42  289,250

Mineral resources which are not mineral reserves have not demonstrated economic viability. The estimate of mineral 
resources may be materially affected by environmental, permitting, legal, title, taxation, sociopolitical, marketing, 
or other relevant issues.

Open pit resources were estimated from a pit shell which was optimized using Whittle software and with the
following assumptions: gold price: US$1,200/oz, mining costs in saprolite: US$1.30/t, in fresh rock: US$2.00/t,
milling cost: US$10.00/t, G&A: US$4.50/t, mill recovery: 91.9% and pit slope angles in saprolite: 28°, in fresh rock: 
45°. Open pit resources were reported within the Whittle pit shell using a cutoff grade which met the marginal cost 
of milling at the pit rim, making allowances for metallurgical recovery.

Underground resources were reported from the remaining resource below the pit after a 30-metre thick notional 
crown pillar was left behind. The cut-off grade for reporting underground resources used the factors noted above 
and preliminary underground mining costs estimated for the Aurora Project feasibility study of US$50.26/t.

This resource estimate signifi cantly increases the overall understanding and confi dence of the mineral resource and 
has identifi ed additional nearby areas of potential extensions along strike and at depth within the deposit.

The Company expects to complete another updated resource estimate at Sulphur Rose, following additional
drilling, in late 2012.

In addition, drilling and trenching are currently being conducted on the S-1 Target located 2.6 kilometres east of 
Sulphur Rose where previous soil sampling have shown favourable results. The exploration potential for further 
resource additions found within a 5-kilometre radius of Sulphur Rose are considered excellent due to preliminary 
results and will be further explored in fi scal 2012.
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management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

The Company’s plan for 2012 is to continue to advance the delineation of the deposit at Sulphur Rose with the 
expectation that signifi cant potential exists to add ounces both at Sulphur Rose, and at other nearby prospective 
properties within the Aranka Properties. The Company has outlined various targets within a 5-kilometre radius of 
Sulphur Rose that will be systematically explored with the expectation of adding to the resource base.

For fi scal 2011, the Company had budgeted expenditures of $10 million for the Aranka Properties. During fi scal 
2011, the Company has spent approximately $6.3 million on its Aranka Properties.

On December 14, 2011, the Company originally announced a total budget of up to $7 million to be expended in 
2012 at Sulphur Rose and at its other Aranka Properties.

TECHNICAL DISCLOSURE
The revised resource estimate for the Aurora Project was prepared by SRK resource estimation specialists Dorota
El-Rassi P.Eng (APEO #100012348) and Glen Cole, P.Geo (APGO #1416) who are the independent “Qualifi ed
Persons” for the purposes of NI 43-101, Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects of the Canadian Securities
Administrators. The disclosure regarding the Aurora Project under the heading Project Activities was prepared
under the supervision of Messrs. El-Rassi and Cole. Micon International Limited employee, B. Terrence Hennessey,
P.Geo. was the independent “Qualifi ed Person” for the updated Mineral Resource Estimate at Sulphur Rose for
the purposes of NI 43-101, Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects of the Canadian Securities Administrators. 
The disclosure regarding Sulphur Rose under the heading Project Activities was prepared under the supervision of 
Mr. Hennessey.

Chief Geologist Augusto Flores IV, (P.Geo), a “Qualifi ed Person” within the meaning of NI 43-101, has supervised 
the Aranka Properties contents under the heading Project Activities.

TRENDS
The Company is a Canadian-based mineral exploration company primarily focused on the acquisition, exploration
and development of gold deposits in the Guiana Shield of South America. The Company attempts to acquire
properties in Guyana, should such acquisitions be consistent with the objectives and acquisition criteria of the
Company. The Company’s future fi nancial success will be dependent upon the development of the Aurora Project 
into a producing gold mine. In addition, both the price of, and the market for, gold is volatile, diffi cult to predict 
and subject to changes in domestic and international political, social and economic environments. The Company 
remains cautious in case the economic factors that impact the mining industry deteriorate.

The Company is aware that governments around the world are looking to the resource sector as a possible source 
of additional revenue, be it taxes or royalties. The Company has negotiated a long-term agreement it considers to 
be fair which should benefi t all stakeholders.

Apart from these and the risk factors noted under the heading “Risk Factors” below, management is not aware 
of any other trends, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a material effect on the Company’s
business, fi nancial condition or results of operations.

On October 28, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with an unrelated private corporation for the 
sale of its Langis Mine property in Ontario, Canada, for a purchase price of $500,000, payable in cash, 3,055,555 
common shares of the private corporation, and a 2% net smelter royalty. In addition, the private corporation, after 
closing and following a subsequent fi nancing, that number of common shares of the private corporation equal to 
such further common shares of the private corporation that shall enable the Company to own 10% of all the share 
capital of the private corporation, on a fully diluted basis as at the time the private corporation becomes a reporting 
issuer will be issued to the Company. The closing of the transaction was completed on November 9, 2011.
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management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

SELECTED ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is selected fi nancial data derived from the audited consolidated fi nancial statements of the Company 
as at October 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 and for the years ended October 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

 Year ended  Year ended Year ended
 Oct. 31, 2011 ($)  Oct. 31, 2010 ($) Oct. 31, 2009 ($)

Net loss  (6,764,021)  (6,267,447)  (6,686,821)

Net loss per share (basic and diluted)  (0.08) (0.08)  (0.11)

 Year ended  Year ended Year ended
 Oct. 31, 2011 ($)  Oct. 31, 2010 ($) Oct. 31, 2009 ($)

Mineral exploration properties  139,745,962  89,577,516 55,972,018

Total assets  192,110,074  165,464,259 80,530,232

Current liabilities  4,789,715  2,518,567 1,970,629

• The net loss for the year ended October 31, 2011 consisted primarily of (i) stock-based compensation 
of $5,406,642; (ii) offi ce expense of $2,031,346; (iii) professional fees of $579,923; (iv) loss on foreign
exchange of $308,419; and (v) other working capital expenditures incurred to maintain the operations of the 
Company. These amounts were offset by (i) interest income of $186,750; (ii) an unrealized gain on short-term 
investments of $1,101,297; and (iii) a gain on sale of mineral properties of $1,496,888.

• The net loss for the year ended October 31, 2010 consisted primarily of (i) stock-based compensation of 
$3,751,027; (ii) offi ce expense of $1,928,236; (iii) professional fees of $891,974; and (iv) other working 
capital expenditures incurred to maintain the operations of the Company. These amounts were offset by 
(i) interest income of $421,667; (ii) an unrealized gain on short term investments of $1,188,748; (iii) gain 
on foreign exchange of $46,925; and (iv) Guyana Goldfi elds’ share of income from its equity investment in 
Guyana Precious of $58,000;

• The net loss for the year ended October 31, 2009 consisted primarily of (i) stock-based compensation 
of $2,562,871; (ii) offi ce expense of $1,091,376; (iii) loss on foreign exchange of $428,293; (iv) Guyana
Goldfi elds’ share of loss from its equity investment in Guyana Precious of $1,328,330; (v) professional fees of 
$514,472; and (vi) other working capital expenditures incurred to maintain the operations of the Company. 
These amounts were offset by (i) interest income of $211,080; and (ii) an unrealized gain on short-term
investments of $127,830.

• As the Company presently has no revenue, the Company’s ability to fund its operations is dependent 
upon its ability to secure fi nancing through equity or the sale of assets. The value of any resource property
asset is dependent upon the existence of economically recoverable mineral reserves, the ability to obtain the
necessary fi nancing to complete exploration and development, and the future profi table production or
proceeds from disposition of such properties. See “Risk Factors”, below.

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS
At October 31, 2011, the Company was an exploration stage entity engaged in the acquisition, exploration,
evaluation and development of principally gold resource properties in Guyana, South America. At this time, any
issues of seasonality or commodity market fl uctuations have no direct impact on the Company’s results or
operations. The Company currently defers its exploration expenditures to mineral exploration properties.
A summary of selected information for each of the eight most recent quarters is as follows:
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management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

Three Months Ended (*) Net loss Basic & diluted loss per share

October 31, 2011  ($1,398,221) (1) ($0.01)

July 31, 2011  ($1,891,463) (2)  ($0.02)

April 30, 2011  ($2,198,009) (3) ($0.03)

January 31, 2011  ($1,276,328) (4)  ($0.02)

October 31, 2010  ($1,302,824) (5)  ($0.02)

July 31, 2010  ($979,203) (6)  ($0.01)

April 30, 2010 ($3,008,563) (7)  ($0.04)

January 31, 2010  ($976,857) (8)  ($0.01)

(*) Guyana Goldfi elds does not have any (loss) income before discontinued operations or extraordinary  items for each period presented.

Notes:

1. Net loss of $1,398,221 principally relates to (i) stock-based compensation of $788,806; (ii) professional fees 
of $138,925; (iii) offi ce expenses of $439,006; (iv) offset by interest income of $111,282; (v) unrealized loss 
of $424,175 on short-term investments resulting from a mark to market adjustment on October 31, 2011; 
(vi) offset by gain on foreign exchange of $682,918; and all other expenses related to general working
capital purposes.

2. Net loss of $1,891,463 principally relates to (i) stock-based compensation of $1,548,343; (ii) professional 
fees of $120,645; (iii) offi ce expenses of $422,818; (iv) offset by interest income of $33,817; (v) unrealized 
loss of $1,370,355 on short-term investments resulting from a mark to market adjustment on July 31, 2011; 
(vi) offset by gain on foreign exchange of $328,601; and (vii) offset by a gain on sale of mineral exploration 
properties of $1,496,888. All other expenses related to general working capital purposes.

3. Net loss of $2,198,009 principally relates to (i) stock-based compensation of $1,113,325; (ii) professional 
fees of $140,006; (iii) offi ce expenses of $621,917; (iv) offset by interest income of $14,427; (v) transfer,
listing and fi ling fees of $88,584; (vi) offset by an unrealized gain of $948,587 on short-term
investments resulting from a mark to market adjustment on April 30, 2011; and (vii) loss on foreign
exchange of $1,015,637. All other expenses related to general working capital purposes.

4. Net loss of $1,276,328 principally relates to (i) stock-based compensation of $1,956,168; (ii) professional 
fees of $180,347; (iii) offi ce expenses of $547,605; (iv) offset by interest income of $27,224; (v) transfer, 
listing and fi ling fees of $46,054; (vi) offset by an unrealized gain of $1,947,240 on short-term investments 
resulting from a mark to market adjustment on January 31, 2011; and (vii) loss on foreign exchange of 
$304,301. All other expenses related to general working capital purposes.

5. Net loss of $1,302,824 principally relates to (i) stock-based compensation of $1,020,746; (ii) professional
fees of $261,349; (iii) offi ce expenses of $515,440; (iv) offset by interest income of $129,464;
(v) transfer, listing and fi ling fees of $7,855; and (vi) offset by an unrealized gain of $1,222,973 on short-term
investments resulting from a mark to market adjustment on October 31, 2010. All other expenses related to 
general working capital purposes.

6. Net loss of $979,203 principally relates to (i) stock-based compensation of $300,433; (ii) professional fees of 
$111,534; (iii) offi ce expenses of $387,610; (iv) offset by interest income of $79,461; (v) offset by a foreign
exchange gain of $315,899; and (vi) an unrealized loss of $265,898 on short-term investments resulting from 
a mark to market adjustment on July 31, 2010. All other expenses related to general working capital purposes.

7. Net loss of $3,008,563 principally relates to (i) stock-based compensation of $2,129,415; (ii) professional 
fees of $291,839; (iii) offi ce expenses of $492,104; (iv) offset by interest income of $183,098; and (v) offset 
by unrealized income of $186,548 on short-term investments resulting from a mark to market adjustment 
on April 30, 2010. All other expenses related to general working capital purposes.
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8. Net loss of $976,857 principally relates to (i) stock-based compensation of $300,433; (ii) professional fees 
of $227,252; (iii) offi ce expenses of $533,082; (iv) offset by Guyana Goldfi elds’ share of income from its 
equity investment in Guyana Precious of $125,300; (v) offset by unrealized income of $45,125 on short-term 
investments resulting from a mark to market adjustment on January 31, 2010; and (vi) offset by a gain on 
sale of short-term investments of $89,600. All other expenses related to general working capital purposes.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended October 31, 2011, Compared With Year Ended October 31, 2010

The Company’s net loss totalled $6,764,021 for the year ended October 31, 2011, with basic and diluted loss per 
share of $0.08. This compares with a net loss of $6,267,447 with basic and diluted loss per share of $0.08 for the 
year ended October 31, 2010. The increase of $496,574 in net loss was principally because:

• Stock-based compensation during the year ended October 31, 2011, was $8,878,948. The value of
stock options vested and capitalized to mineral exploration properties was $3,472,306 for a net expense of 
$5,406,642 (year ended October 31, 2010 – $3,751,027), an increase of $1,655,615 compared to the same 
period in 2010. During the year ended October 31, 2011, the Company issued 2,305,000 options compared 
with 1,480,000 in the comparative period. Stock-based compensation expense varies due to the calculated 
Black-Scholes value and vesting terms of options issued in the current period and prior periods. The options 
issued vested in accordance with the stock option plan. Users of the consolidated fi nancial statements should 
be cautious of the valuation of stock-based compensation since its calculation is subjective and can impact 
net loss signifi cantly.

Several variables are used when determining the value of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation 
model:

• The expected life: the Company used the maximum term ascribed to these stock options for the purposes 
of calculating their value. The Company chose the maximum term because it is diffi cult to determine with 
any reasonable degree of accuracy when these stock options will be exercised.

• Volatility: the Company used historical information on the market price of its common shares to determine 
the degree of volatility at the date the stock options were granted. Therefore, depending on when the
stock options were granted and the period of historical information examined, the degree of volatility can 
be different when calculating the value of different stock options.

• Risk-free interest rate: the Company used the interest rate available for government securities of an
equivalent expected term as at the date of the grant of the stock options. The risk-free interest rate will vary 
depending on the date of the grant of the stock options and their expected term.

• Dividend yield: the Company has not paid dividends in the past because it was in the exploration stage 
and has not yet earned any signifi cant income. Also, the Company does not expect to pay dividends in 
the foreseeable future. Therefore, a dividend rate of 0% was used for the purposes of the valuation of the 
stock options.

Stock options are issued to attract key personnel to work for the Company.

• Foreign exchange loss for the year ended October 31, 2011, increased by $355,344, compared with 
the same period in 2010. The increase in loss can be attributed to Guyana and US dollar exchange rate
fl uctuations.

• Professional fees for the year ended October 31, 2011, were $579,923 (year ended October 31, 2010 - 
$891,974), a decrease of $312,051 compared to the same period in 2010. This decrease can be attributed 
to less corporate activity requiring legal services.

• Management and consulting fees for the year ended October 31, 2011, were $907,769 (year ended October 
31, 2010 - $899,354), a marginal increase of $8,415 compared to the same period in 2010.
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• Gain (loss) on sale of short-term investments for the year ended October 31, 2011, was $136,736 (year 
ended October 31, 2010 – ($685,900)), an increase of $822,636 compared to the same period in 2010. The 
increase is attributable to a higher gain recognized in the current period from the sale of common shares and 
warrants of Stonegate Agricom Ltd. and sale of common shares of Prophecy Platinium Corp. compared to 
the sale of the Company’s investment in Temex Resources Corp. for a gain of $89,600 and the sale of White 
Pine Resources Inc. for a loss of $775,500 in the comparative period.

• Interest income for the year ended October 31, 2011, was $186,750 (year ended October 31, 2010 – 
$421,667), a decrease of $234,917 compared to the same period in 2010. The decrease is attributable to the 
Company moving funds between foreign jurisdictions throughout the year that were not invested in interest 
bearing securities.

• Unrealized gain on short-term investments for the year ended October 31, 2011, was $1,101,297 (year 
ended October 31, 2010 – $1,188,748), a marginal decrease of $87,451 compared to the same period 
in 2010. The unrealized gain on short-term investments in both periods arose from an overall increase 
in the market value of the Company’s junior resource company portfolio. In addition, the Company held 
6,870,000 common shares of Guyana Precious representing approximately an 8% interest in the issued 
and outstanding common shares. During the year, Guyana Precious issued 70,000,000 common shares 
to third parties pursuant to a non-brokered private placement. Accordingly, the Company’s position has 
been diluted from approximately 13% to 8%. The circumstances surrounding this dilution have resulted
in a reclassifi cation of the underlying investment from equity accounting to a portfolio investment,
classifi ed as held for trading and recorded at market value on the Company’s balance sheet. The quoted 
market value of Guyana Precious as at October 31, 2011, was determined to be $1,717,500 (October 31, 
2010 - $1,854,900).

• Offi ce expense for the year ended October 31, 2011, was $2,031,346 (year ended October 31, 2010 - 
$1,928,236). The increase of $103,110 was due to higher investor relations, marketing and corporate expenses.

• Gain on sale of mineral exploration properties for the year ended October 31, 2011, was $1,496,888 (year 
ended October 31, 2010 - $nil), an increase of $1,496,888 compared to the same period in 2010. The gain on 
sale of mineral exploration properties arose mainly from the sale of Peters Mine Property to Guyana Precious.

• All other expenses related to general working capital purposes.

Three Months Ended October 31, 2011, Compared With Three Months Ended October 31, 2010

The Company’s net loss totalled $1,398,221 for the three months ended October 31, 2011, with basic and diluted 
loss per share of $0.01. This compares with a net loss of $1,302,824 with basic and diluted loss per share of $0.02 
for the three months ended October 31, 2010. The increase of $95,397 in net loss was principally because:

• Stock-based compensation during the three months ended October 31, 2011, was $1,814,383, net of
forfeitures. The value of stock options vested and capitalized to mineral exploration properties was 
$1,025,577 for a net expense of $788,806 (three months ended October 31, 2010 – $1,020,746), a
decrease of $231,940 compared to the same period in 2010. During the three months ended October 31,
2011, the Company issued 150,000 options compared with 390,000 in the comparative period.
Stock-based compensation expense varies due to the calculated Black- Scholes value and vesting
terms of options issued in the current period and prior periods. The options issued vested in accordance
with the stock option plan. Users of the fi nancial statements should be cautious of the valuation 
of stock-based compensation since its calculation is subjective and can impact net loss signifi cantly.

Several variables are used, including the expected term, volatility, risk-free interest rate and dividend yield, 
when determining the value of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation model, as described on pages 
11 and 12.

• Foreign exchange gain for the three months ended October 31, 2011, increased by $750,208, compared 
with the same period in 2010. The increase in gain can be attributed to Guyana and US dollar exchange rate 
fl uctuations.
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• Professional fees for the three months ended October 31, 2011, were $138,925 (three months ended
October 31, 2010 - $261,349), a decrease of $122,424 compared to the same period in 2010. This decrease 
can be attributed to less corporate activity requiring legal services.

• Management and consulting fees for the three months ended October 31, 2011, were $205,932 (three 
months ended October 31, 2010 - $376,016), a decrease of $170,084 compared to the same period in 
2010. This decrease is attributable to a bonus of $240,000 paid to J. Patrick Sheridan, chief executive offi cer 
(“CEO”) of the Company in Q4 (2010). No bonuses were paid in Q4 (2011).

• Loss on sale of short-term investments for the three months ended October 31, 2011, was $nil (three months 
ended October 31, 2010 – $775,500), an increase in loss of $775,500 compared to the same period in 
2010. The increase is attributable to a loss recognized in the comparative period from the sale of White Pine
Resources Inc. for a loss of $775,500 compared to no sales in the current period.

• Interest income for the three months ended October 31, 2011, was $111,282 (three months ended
October 31, 2010 – $129,464), a decrease of $18,182 compared to the same period in 2010. The decrease is
attributable to the Company moving funds between foreign jurisdictions throughout the quarter that were 
not invested in interest bearing securities.

• Unrealized gain (loss) on short-term investments for the three months ended October 31, 2011, was 
($424,175) (three months ended October 31, 2010 – $1,222,973), an increase in loss of $1,647,148
compared to the same period in 2010. The unrealized loss on short-term investments arose from an overall 
decrease in the market value of the Company’s junior resource company portfolio.

• Offi ce expense for the three months ended October 31, 2011, was $439,006 (three months ended October 
31, 2010 - $515,440). The decrease of $76,434 was due to lower investor relations, marketing and corporate 
expenses.

• All other expenses related to general working capital purposes.

Use of proceeds from the fi nancing by short form prospectus dated January 19, 2010

The Company’s activities do have considerable scope for fl exibility in terms of the amount and timing of exploration 
expenditure, and expenditures may be adjusted accordingly. The following table outlines Guyana Goldfi elds’ plans:

The Company had originally budgeted approximately $68 million for its use of proceeds as disclosed in the short 
form prospectus dated January 19, 2010. In fi scal 2010, the Company spent approximately $34 million, leaving 
a remaining balance of approximately $34 million. The Company subsequently revised its budget requiring it to 
spend approximately $71 million. Specifi c items within the budget and a comparison to actual are outlined in the 
table below:
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Use of Proceeds (1) Revised Budget  Spent (2) in Fiscal 2011 Under (Over) 
 (apx.) (apx.) Budget (apx.)

Hydroelectric Study at
the Aurora Project $380,000 $367,000 $13,000

Continue Phase II of
Pre-Development Study  $20,000,000  $23,551,000  ($3,551,000)

Initiate building of access
road to Aurora Project, site
roads and civil works $18,283,000  $3,387,000  $14,896,000

Initiate building of Buckhall
Port facilities, airstrip and river
dyke for the Aurora Project $9,113,000  $3,599,000  $5,514,000

Initiate mobile equipment
purchase and establishment
of new camp, cookery and
guardhouse at the
Aurora Project $415,000  $2,096,000  ($1,681,000)

Initiate power plant and fuel
storage equipment purchases
at the Aurora Project $7,000,000  $nil  $7,000,000

Ongoing exploration work,
drilling and assaying of
Aranka properties $10,000,000  $6,300,000  $3,700,000

General corporate expenses  $5,500,000  $4,210,000  $1,290,000

Total  $70,691,000  $43,510,000  $27,181,000

1. As of October 31, 2011, the Company is holding all unused proceeds of the public offering (including the 
over-allotment) at a major Canadian chartered bank and fi nancial institutions in Guyana and Barbados.

2. Column includes expenditures from November 1, 2010 to October 31, 2011 (Fiscal 2011).

As of October 31, 2011, the Company’s defi nitive feasibility study and related exploration programs continues. 
During fi scal 2011, the Company was under budget by approximately $27 million in aggregate. It must be noted 
that Phase II of the pre-development study was over budget by approximately $4 million and the purchase of
mobile equipment was over budget by approximately $2 million due to the advance purchase of certain earth
moving equipment.

Signifi cant work has been deferred at site and with respect to the power plant pending fi nalization of the MA and 
the issue of the mining licence which occurred in November 2011.

The Company has not developed a fi scal 2012 budget since it is concentrating on the completion of the defi nitive 
feasibility study for the Aurora Project, results of which are scheduled for release near the end of February 2012. 
Once management has completed its review of both capital and operating costs as set forth in the feasibility study, 
the Company will adopt a fi scal 2012 budget and determine its fi nancing requirements.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND BUSINESS PROSPECTS
The Company does not generate cash from mining operations and therefore, it must utilize its current cash
reserves, income from short-term investments, funds obtained from the exercise of warrants and stock options
and other fi nancing transactions to maintain its capacity to meet working capital requirements and planned
expenditures, or to fund any further development activities.
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On October 31, 2011, the Company’s total assets amounted to $192,110,074, which compares to the $165,464,259 
at October 31, 2010. Excluding cash, bank investment certifi cates and short-term investments, total assets mostly 
consist of mineral exploration properties, which as at October 31, 2011, totalled $139,745,962 ($89,577,516 
at October 31, 2010), being $118,532,252 incurred at the Aurora Project (October 31, 2010 - $72,464,027), 
$21,213,709 at the Aranka Properties (October 31, 2010 - $13,290,245), $nil at the Arakaka Properties (October 
31, 2010 - $3,823,242), and $1 for other properties (October 31, 2010 - $2). The Company’s total assets also
included the amount of $7,305,508 ($7,855,465 at October 31, 2010) related to property and equipment.

The Company’s total liabilities at October 31, 2011, include accounts payable to suppliers and other accrued
liabilities of $4,789,715 ($2,518,567 at October 31, 2010). The Company’s cash as at October 31, 2011, is more 
than suffi cient to satisfy these liabilities.

The Company continues to have no debt and its credit and interest rate risk is minimal. Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities are short-term and non-interest bearing. The Company’s liquidity risk with fi nancial instruments
is minimal as excess cash is invested in short-term guaranteed deposits. In addition, accounts receivable are
composed mainly of sales tax receivable from government authorities in Canada and deposits held with consultants 
and other service providers.

The Company believes it has suffi cient cash resources to meet its exploration and administrative overhead for the 
next twelve months. The Company does not have suffi cient funds to develop the Aurora Project into a producing 
mine at this time. The Company will adopt a fi scal 2012 budget and determine its fi nancing requirements after 
the results of the defi nitive feasibility study are analyzed. The Company intends to examine opportunities to raise
additional capital through equity markets when the funds are required; however, there can be no assurance it will 
be able to raise funds in the future. The Company’s activities do have considerable scope for fl exibility in terms of 
the amount and timing of expenditure, and expenditures may be adjusted accordingly. See “Use of proceeds from 
the fi nancing by short form prospectus dated January 19, 2010” under “Results of operations” above.

The Company’s aggregate operating, investing and fi nancing activities during the year ended October 31, 2011, 
resulted in a net cash position of $21,739,110 ($50,078,581 at October 31, 2010). The Company’s primary source 
of funding for the year ended October 31, 2011 has been the issuance of equity securities for cash. For the year 
ended October 31, 2011, the Company received proceeds of $13,559,740 from the exercise of 1,159,450 stock 
options and 1,730,000 warrants. The Company’s working capital of approximately $40 million as of October 31, 
2011, is anticipated to be adequate for it to continue operations for the next twelve months ending October 31, 
2012, at or near current operating levels. The development of the Aurora Project will require that the Company 
raise signifi cant cash through debt or equity issuances. There can be no assurance that such fi nancing will be
available to the Company on reasonable terms.

OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
As of the date of this fi ling, the Company does not have any off-balance-sheet arrangements that have, or are
reasonably likely to have, a current or future effect on the results of operations or fi nancial condition of the
Company, including, and without limitation, such considerations as liquidity and capital resources.

COMMITMENTS
In addition to commitments otherwise reported in this MD&A, the Company’s contractual obligations as at October 
31, 2011, include:

Contractual Total  Up to 1 1-3 years  4-5 years  After 5
Obligations  year    years

Capital Lease Obligation  $nil  $nil  $nil  $nil  $nil

Operating Leases (1)  $489,810  $155,000  $334,810  $nil  $nil

Purchasing Obligations (2)  $147,250  $147,250  $nil  $nil  $nil

Other Obligations (3)  $673,200  $673,200  $nil  $nil  $nil

Total Contractual Obligations  $1,310,260  $975,450  $334,810  $nil  $nil
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(1)  Related mainly to premise rent agreements;
(2)  Amounts relate to purchase contracts for capital equipment; and
(3)  Contractual commitments related to defi nitive feasibility study.

The Company is party to certain management and consulting contracts. These contracts contain clauses requiring 
additional payments to be made upon the occurrence of certain events such as contract termination or change of 
control by the Company. The additional commitments for the top three executives range up to $3,598,000 as a 
result of the change of control. As the likelihood of these events taking place is not determinable, the contingent 
payments have not been refl ected in the consolidated fi nancial statements.

PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS
The Company evaluates various opportunities and transactions as they arise. There are no material transactions 
pending at the date of this MD&A.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the following amounts due to related parties:

 October 31, 2011 $ October 31, 2010 $

J. Patrick Sheridan, CEO and director  5,832  255,000

Robert Bondy, a director of the Company  nil  8,000

Total  5,832 263,000

(b) The Company had the following related party transactions during the periods presented:

Operating expenses Year Ended  Year Ended
 Oct. 31, 2011 $ Oct. 31, 2010 $

Consulting fees

J. Patrick Sheridan, President, CEO and director 237,900  313,816

Paul J. Murphy, Executive Vice- President,
Finance and chief fi nancial offi cer (“CFO”) 266,671  125,000

2260200 Ontario Inc., a company controlled
by Daniel Noone, Vice-President of Exploration 27,633  nil

1140301 Ontario Limited,controlled by Alan Ferry,
director of Guyana Goldfi elds 26,000 30,000

Robert Bondy, a director of the Company  26,000  25,000

Richard Williams, a director of the Company  28,000  20,000

Management fees

Marrelli CFO Outsource Syndicate Inc., a company controlled
by Carmelo Marrelli, the former CFO of Guyana Goldfi elds  Nil  17,500

Accounting fees

Marrelli Support Services Inc., a company
controlled by Carmelo Marrelli,
the former CFO of Guyana Goldfi elds Nil 51,070

Total  612,204  582,386

16

AnnualReport_Inside_2012_FINAL.indd   16 12-03-09   5:27 PM



management’s discussion and analysis - for the year ended october 31, 2011

Mineral exploration expenditures Year Ended Year Ended
Oct. 31, 2011 $  Oct.31, 2010 $

Consulting fees

J. Patrick Sheridan, President, CEO and director  202,800  298,133

Alexander Po, exploration manager and director  101,375  100,953

Daniel Noone, director and V.P. Exploration of the Company and
General Manager, 2260200 Ontario Inc., geological consulting fi rm  152,219  83,691

Total  456,394  482,777

(c) Included in accounts receivable is $7,790 (October 31, 2010 - $1,820) owing from Guyana Precious.

Guyana Goldfi elds has agreed to provide established logistical and geological support to Guyana Precious. Guyana 
Goldfi elds and Guyana Precious have signed an “Area of Infl uence” agreement that restricts Guyana Precious from 
participating in property acquisition and development within a defi ned area of Guyana Goldfi elds’ exploration and 
development activities in Guyana. In addition, Guyana Goldfi elds will have a “Right of First Opportunity” to acquire 
advanced stage properties in which there is a defi ned resource.

(d) On April 26, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with Guyana Precious for the sale of its Peters Mine 
and Aremu Properties in Guyana, for a purchase price of US$2,400,000, payable in cash at closing. The transac-
tion was completed on July 7, 2011. A gain of $1,515,019 was recorded for the sale of Peters Mine and Aremu 
Properties.

All the above related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange 
amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

The Canadian Accounting Standards Board has confi rmed that IFRS will replace current Canadian GAAP for publicly 
accountable enterprises, including the Company, effective for fi scal years beginning on or after January 1, 2011.

Accordingly, the Company will apply accounting standards consistent with IFRS beginning with its interim fi nancial
statements for the quarter ended January 31, 2012. The Company’s 2012 interim and annual consolidated
fi nanc ial statements will include comparative 2011 fi nancial statements, adjusted to refl ect the changes in accounting
policies and fi nancial statement disclosures resulting from the initial adoption of IFRS.

IFRS Transition Plan

The Company established a comprehensive IFRS transition plan and engaged third-party advisers to assist with the 
planning and implementation of its transition to IFRS.

The Company has completed the detailed analysis of IFRS requirements and expected changes to accounting
policies and choices with respect to fi rst-time adoption alternatives.

The following summarizes the Company’s progress and expectations with respect to its IFRS transition plan:
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 Initial scoping and analysis of key areas
 for which accounting policies may be  Complete
 impacted by the transition to IFRS. 

 Detailed evaluation of potential changes
 required to accounting policies,
 information systems and business  

Complete processes, including the application of
 IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International
 Financial Reporting Standards. 

 Determination of expected changes to
 accounting policies and expected choices  

Complete to be made with respect to fi rst-time
 adoption alternatives. 

 Resolution of the accounting policy
 change implications on information  

Complete technology, business processes and
 contractual arrangements. 

 Quantifi cation of the fi nancial statement
 impact of changes in accounting policies.  Substantially complete

 Management and employee education
 and training.  Throughout the transition process

The Company has substantially completed its transition to IFRS and expects to complete its fi rst interim consolidated 
fi nancial statements prepared under IFRS for the three months ending January 31, 2012, with no signifi cant issues 
or delay.

First-time adoption of IFRS – Expected Impact of IFRS Adoption at November 1, 2010

The Company has identifi ed the areas noted below as those expected to have the greatest impact on the fi nancial 
statements as of the date of transition to IFRS, November 1, 2010. The Company’s IFRS adjustments to its Canadian 
GAAP balance sheet on transition are intended to refl ect the Company’s fi nancial position under IFRS in accordance 
with accounting policies the Company expects to adopt in its fi scal 2012 fi nancial statements. Consequently, 
the following areas should not be regarded as a complete list of expected changes. As the Company fi nalizes its
transition to IFRS, and as changes to Canadian GAAP and IFRS standards may occur prior to October 31, 2012, 
the differences and impacts described below may be subject to change. The Company will continue to monitor 
these international accounting developments and to disclose additional impacts on its fi nancial reporting as they 
are determined.

The adoption of IFRS requires the application of IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS 1”), which provides guidance for an entity’s initial adoption of IFRS. IFRS 1 generally requires
retrospective application of IFRS from the date of transition, November 1, 2010. All material accounting differences 
between Canadian GAAP and IFRS will be eliminated generally through opening retained earnings at the date of 
transition. IFRS 1 also provides certain optional exemptions in the application of particular standards in order to 
assist companies with the transition process.

The Company has identifi ed the following signifi cant optional exemptions that it expects to apply in its preparation 
of an opening IFRS statement of fi nancial position as at November 1, 2010:

• To apply IFRS 2 Share-based Payments only to equity instruments issued after November 7, 2002, and that 
had not vested by the transition date.
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• To apply IFRS 3 Business Combinations prospectively from the transition date, therefore not restating business 
combinations that took place prior to the transition date.

• To apply the transition provisions of IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, there-
fore determining if arrangements existing at the transition date contain a lease based on the circumstances 
existing at that date.

• To apply IAS 23 Borrowing Costs prospectively from the transition date. IAS 23 requires the capitalization of 
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, production or construction of certain assets.

IFRS 1 does not permit changes to estimates that have been made previously. Accordingly, estimates used in 
the preparation of the Company’s opening IFRS statement of fi nancial position as at the transition date will be
consistent with those made under current Canadian GAAP.

The following accounting policy changes resulting from differences between Canadian GAAP and IFRS are
expected to result in an adjustment to the Company’s opening IFRS balance sheet. An examination of the differences
identifi ed and adjustments recorded are currently being reviewed with our auditors. The accounting differences 
described immediately below should not be regarded as a complete list of areas that may be impacted by the
transition to IFRS.

Share Based Payments

In certain circumstances, IFRS requires a different measurement of stock-based compensation related to stock
options than current Canadian GAAP. The Company expects changes to its methodology used to calculate 
stock options forfeitures and the calculation of graded vesting for compensation expense. The expected 
impact of adopting the IFRS 1 optional exemption relating to equity instruments issued after November 7, 
2002 that have not vested as of the transition date November 1, 2010 is to increase accumulated defi cit, 
stock options (shareholders’ equity), and noncurrent assets (mineral properties) by approximately $1 million, 
$2 million, and $1 million, respectively.

Foreign Currency

IFRS requires that the functional currency of each entity in the consolidated group be determined separately
in accordance with IAS 21 and the entity’s fi nancial results and position should be measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The factors considered to determine functional currency under IFRS are somewhat different than current
Canadian GAAP. The Company expects that a change in its functional currency to the United States
dollar for each of its subsidiaries will be required on adoption of IFRS. All resulting foreign exchange gains 
and losses will continue to be recorded in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive 
loss. The transition date impact of converting to a United States dollar functional currency is expected to
primarily reduce each of the following; current assets by $1 million, non-current assets (mineral properties) 
by $3 million, and share capital by approximately $4 million.

Warrants

Due to the expected change in functional currency as discussed above, IFRS requires that warrants issued in a
currency other than the functional currency of the company, be accounted for as an embedded derivative. As
Guyana Goldfi elds Inc. issued Canadian dollar warrants, the warrants will be accounted for as a derivative with 
the existing balance residing in shareholders’ equity reclassifi ed to current liabilities. In addition, the outstanding 
warrants are to be fair valued using the Black-Scholes model and translated into United States dollars at each
reporting period end foreign exchange rate. Upon transition to IFRS on November 1, 2010, the expected fair value 
adjustment increases the warrant derivative liability by approximately $9 million, with an offsetting increase in
accumulated defi cit.

Impairment of (Non-fi nancial) Assets

IFRS requires a write-down of assets if the higher of the fair market value and the value in use of a group of 
assets is less than its carrying value. Value in use is determined using discounted estimated future cash fl ows. 
Current Canadian GAAP requires a write-down to estimated fair value only if the undiscounted estimated 
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future cash fl ows of a group of assets are less than its carrying value. Reversal of impairment charges is
required under IFRS if the circumstances leading to the impairment have changed. The Company will 
change its accounting policies related to impairment of non-fi nancial assets to refl ect these differences. The
Company expects to partially reverse, on transition to IFRS on November 1, 2010, the impairment loss
recognized on the Peters Mine property recorded in fi scal 2008. Non-current assets (mineral properties) are 
expected to increase by approximately $2 million with a reduction in accumulated defi cit by $2 million.

The following accounting policy changes that represent signifi cant areas of difference between Canadian GAAP 
and IFRS are not expected to result in an adjustment to the Company’s opening balance sheet on transition to IFRS 
on November 1, 2010:

Exploration and Evaluation Expenditures

IFRS currently allows an entity to either develop a new accounting policy for exploration and evaluation
expenditures consistent with IFRS requirements or continue to follow the Company’s existing policy. Guyana
Goldfi elds expects to retain its current policy of deferring exploration and evaluation expenditures, however 
expects to change its accounting policies such that exploration costs are reclassifi ed to deferred development 
costs when technical feasibility and commercial viability are demonstrable.

Asset Retirement Obligations (Decommissioning Liabilities)

IFRS requires the recognition of a decommissioning liability for legal or constructive obligations, while current
Canadian GAAP only requires the recognition of such liabilities for legal obligations. A constructive obligation
exists when an entity has created reasonable expectations that it will take certain actions. In addition, under 
IFRS the liability calculation will apply a discount rate that refl ects current assessments of the time value of 
money and risks specifi c to the liability. Under Canadian GAAP a historic credit adjusted risk free discount rate 
is used. The Company’s accounting policies related to decommissioning liabilities will be changed to refl ect 
these differences.

Property and Equipment

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (“IAS 16”) requires the Company to choose, for each class of capital 
assets, between the cost model or the revaluation model. Under the revaluation model, an item of PP&E 
is carried at its revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The Company expects it will choose the cost model in 
accounting for its capital assets, which is consistent with current Canadian GAAP. Other aspects of IAS 16, 
while similar to current Canadian GAAP, include some differences that will require a change in accounting 
policies. These differences include the accounting for signifi cant components of assets that are recorded and 
depreciated separately.

Income Taxes

While accounting for income taxes is similar under IFRS and Canadian GAAP, in certain circumstances there 
are differences in the measurement of future tax assets and future tax liabilities. In particular, under IFRS
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on temporary differences related to non-monetary assets and 
liabilities that are re-measured from local currency to functional currency for tax purposes. Future tax assets or 
liabilities are not recognized under Canadian GAAP for these types of differences. The Company will change 
its accounting policies for this difference.

First time adoption of IFRS – Expected impact of IFRS adoption during Fiscal 2011

The Company is currently determining the impact of IFRS adoption on each of its previously published Canadian 
GAAP quarterly results for the year ended October 31, 2011 based on the IFRS 1 elections and accounting policy 
changes and differences discussed above.

Impact of Adopting IFRS on the Company’s Business

Management does not expect that the implementation of IFRS will signifi cantly impact its business or operations. 
The Company has not identifi ed any contractual arrangements that may be affected by potential changes to
signifi cant accounting policies.
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The Company monitors its capital structure and makes adjustments according to market conditions in an effort to 
meet its objectives given the current outlook of the business and industry in general. The Company may manage its 
capital structure by issuing new shares, repurchasing outstanding shares, adjusting capital spending, or disposing 
of assets. The capital structure is reviewed by management and the Board of Directors on an ongoing basis, and is 
believed to be appropriate given the relative size of the Company.

The properties in which the Company currently has an interest are in the exploration or feasibility stage. As such 
the Company is dependent on external fi nancing to fund its activities. In order to carry out its planned exploration 
programs and pay for administrative costs, the Company will spend its existing working capital and raise additional 
amounts as needed.

In light of the above, the Company will continue to assess new properties and seek to acquire an interest in
additional properties if it believes there is suffi cient potential and if it has adequate fi nancial resources to do so.

The Company considers its capital to be equity, comprising share capital, warrants, stock options, contributed 
surplus and defi cit, which at October 31, 2011, totaled $178,620,359 (October 31, 2010 - $162,945,692).
The Company manages capital through its fi nancial and operational forecasting processes. The Company reviews
its working capital and forecasts its future cash fl ows based on operating expenditures, and other investing
and fi nancing activities. The forecast is updated based on exploration and development activities. Selected
information is provided to the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors does not establish
quantitative return on capital criteria for management but rather relies on the expertise of the Company’s
management team to sustain the future development of the business. The Company’s capital management
objectives, policies and processes have remained unchanged during the year ended October 31, 2011.

PROPERTY AND FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of fi nancial risks: liquidity risk, market risk (including interest rate, 
currency rate and price risk) and credit risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team with guidance from the Audit Committee 
under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors also provides regular guidance for overall 
risk management.

(a) Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not have suffi cient cash resources to meet its fi nancial obligations 
as they come due. The time line to build the Aurora Property into a producing mine is dependent on a positive
defi nitive feasibility study anticipated in late February 2012 and adequate project fi nancing. There can be no
assurance the planned fi nancing activities of the Company will be successful in raising adequate capital.

The Company’s liquidity and operating results may be adversely affected if its access to the capital market is
hindered, whether as a result of a downturn in stock market conditions generally or as a result of conditions
specifi c to the Company. The Company generates cash fl ow primarily from its fi nancing activities and interest 
income earned on its cash, bank investment certifi cates and short-term investments. The Company has cash of 
$21,739,110 (October 31, 2010 - $50,078,581) to settle current liabilities of $4,789,715 (October 31, 2010 - 
$2,518,567). The Company regularly evaluates its cash position to ensure preservation and security of capital as 
well as maintenance of liquidity. All of the Company’s fi nancial liabilities are subject to normal trade terms.

(b) Market risk is the risk that the fair value of, or future cash fl ows from, the Company’s fi nancial instruments will 
signifi cantly fl uctuate due to changes in market prices. The value of the fi nancial instruments can be affected by 
changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. In the normal course of business, the Company 
is exposed to market risks as a result of its investments in publicly traded companies. During periods of signifi cant 
broader market volatility or volatility experienced by the resource/commodity markets, the value of the Company’s 
investment portfolio can be vulnerable to market fl uctuations. Sensitivity to a plus or minus 10% change in the
bid price of the Company’s investments in public companies with all other variables held constant as at
October 31, 2011, would not have a material impact on the net loss and comprehensive loss for the years ended 
October 31,  2011 and 2010.
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Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of, or future cash fl ows from, the Company’s fi nancial instruments will 
fl uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar 
and major purchases are transacted in Canadian dollars. The Company funds certain operations, exploration and 
administrative expenses in Guyana on a cash call basis using US dollars converted from its Canadian dollar bank 
accounts held in Canada. The Company maintains US dollar bank accounts in Canada, Barbados and Guyana and 
Guyanese bank accounts in Guyana. The Company is subject to gains and losses due to fl uctuations in the US and 
Guyanese dollars against the Canadian dollar. Sensitivity to a plus or minus 10% change in all foreign currencies 
(Guyanese and US dollars) against the Canadian dollar with all other variables held constant as at October 31, 2011,
would affect net loss and comprehensive loss by approximately $2 million (October 31, 2010 - $435,000).

Interest rate risk is the impact that changes in interest rates could have on the Company’s earnings and assets. In 
the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to interest rate fl uctuations as a result of bank investment 
certifi cates being invested in interest-bearing instruments. Interest rate risk is minimal as the Company’s interest 
bearing instruments have fi xed interest rates.

(c) Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfi ll its payment obligations. The
Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash, bank investment certifi cates, restricted cash and accounts
receivable. The Company has no signifi cant concentration of credit risk arising from operations. Cash, bank
investment certifi cates and restricted cash are held with reputable fi nancial institutions, from which management
believes the risk of loss to be minimal. Accounts receivable include accrued interest and deposits held with
consultants and other service providers; approximately $193,000 represents the maximum credit exposure
(October 31, 2010 – approximately $260,000). Accounts receivable are in good standing as of October 31, 2011. 
Management believes that the credit risk concentration with respect to accounts receivable is minimal.

Fair value hierarchy of fi nancial instruments

As at October 31, 2011, the fair value of cash, bank investment certifi cates and restricted cash totaling
$41,511,729 (October 31, 2010 - $65,965,004) are measured based on level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
(October 31, 2010 - same).

As at October 31, 2011, the fair value of short-term investment totalling $2,409,508 (October 31, 2010 - $1,035,508)
are measured based on level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. (October 31, 2010 - same).

As at October 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying value and fair value amounts of the Company’s fi nancial
instruments were approximately equivalent.

MULTILATERAL INSTRUMENT 52-109 DISCLOSURE
The Company’s CEO and CFO are responsible for the design and effectiveness of disclosure controls and
procedures (“DC&P”) and the design of ICFR to provide reasonable assurance that material information related to the
Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to the Company’s certifying offi cers. The
Company’s controls are based on the COSO framework. The Company’s CEO and the CFO have evaluated 
the design and effectiveness of the Company’s DC&P as of October 31, 2011, and has concluded that these
controls and procedures are effective in providing reasonable assurance that material information relating to the
Company is made known to them by others within the Company. The CEO and CFO have also evaluated the design
and effectiveness of the Company’s ICFR as of October 31, 2011, and concluded that these controls and procedures
are effective in providing reasonable assurance that fi nancial information is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported in a timely manner.

During the current period there have been no changes in the Company’s DC&P or ICFR that materially affected, or 
are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting.

OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA
At the date of this MD&A, the issued and outstanding Common Shares totalled 83,855,693. Options outstanding 
amounted to 6,434,958 at the date of this MD&A.
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RISK FACTORS
The following discussion summarizes the principal risk factors that apply to Guyana Goldfi elds’ business and that 
may have a material adverse effect on Guyana Goldfi elds’ business, fi nancial condition and results of operations, or 
the trading price of the Common Shares.

Exploration, Development and Operating Risks

Mining operations generally involve a high degree of risk. Guyana Goldfi elds’ operations are subject to all the
hazards and risks normally encountered in the exploration, development and production of gold, including unusual 
and unexpected geologic formations, seismic activity, rock bursts, cave-ins, fl ooding and other conditions involved 
in the drilling and removal of material, any of which could result in damage to, or destruction of, mines and 
other producing facilities, damage to life or property, environmental damage and possible legal liability. Although
adequate precautions to minimize risk will be taken, milling operations are subject to hazards such as equipment 
failure or failure of retaining dams around tailings disposal areas which may result in environmental pollution and 
consequent liability.

The exploration for and development of mineral deposits involves signifi cant risks which even a combination of 
careful evaluation, experience and knowledge may not eliminate. While the discovery of an ore body may result 
in substantial rewards, few properties which are explored are ultimately developed into producing mines. Major
expenses may be required to locate and establish mineral reserves, to develop metallurgical processes and to
construct mining and processing facilities at a particular site. It is impossible to ensure that the exploration or
development programs planned by Guyana Goldfi elds will result in a profi table commercial mining operation. 
Whether a mineral deposit will be commercially viable depends on a number of factors, some of which are: the 
particular attributes of the deposit, such as size, grade and proximity to infrastructure; metal prices which are highly 
cyclical; and government regulations, including regulations relating to prices, taxes, royalties, land tenure, land use, 
importing and exporting of minerals and environmental protection. The exact effect of these factors cannot be
accurately predicted, but the combination of these factors may result in Guyana Goldfi elds not receiving an
adequate return on invested capital.

There is no certainty that the expenditures made by Guyana Goldfi elds towards the search and evaluation of
mineral deposits will result in discoveries of commercial quantities of ore.

Licencing Matters

Guyana Goldfi elds’ operations are subject to receiving and maintaining permits and licences from appropriate
governmental authorities. Although Guyana Goldfi elds currently has all required permits and licenses for its
operations as currently conducted, there is no assurance that delays will not occur in connection with obtaining 
all necessary renewals of such permits and licenses for the existing operations or additional permits or licenses for 
all future new operations. There can be no assurance that Guyana Goldfi elds will continue to hold all permits and 
licenses necessary to develop or continue operating at any particular property, or that any such licenses or permits 
awarded will not be cancelled pursuant to applicable legislation.

The interest of Guyana Goldfi elds in the Aurora Project is held through a mineral agreement that sets out a tax 
regime and development and production framework. All other properties are held through property licences.

Insurance and Uninsured Risks

Guyana Goldfi elds’ business is subject to a number of risks and hazards generally, including adverse environmental
conditions, industrial accidents, labour disputes, unusual or unexpected geological conditions, ground or slope 
failures, cave-ins, changes in the regulatory environment and natural phenomena such as inclement weather
conditions, fl oods and earthquakes. Such occurrences could result in damage to mineral properties or production 
facilities, personal injury or death, environmental damage to Guyana Goldfi elds’ properties or the properties of
others, delays in mining, monetary losses and possible legal liability.
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The Company currently maintains director’s and offi cer’s liability insurance and general liability insurance in such 
amounts as it considers to be reasonable. Accordingly, the insurance of the Company does not cover the potential 
risks associated with a mining company’s operations. The Company may also be unable to maintain insurance to 
cover these risks at economically feasible premiums. Insurance coverage may not continue to be available or may 
not be adequate to cover any resulting liability. Moreover, insurance against risks such as environmental pollution or 
other hazards as a result of exploration and production is not generally available to Guyana Goldfi elds or to other 
companies in the mining industry on acceptable terms. Guyana Goldfi elds might also become subject to liability for 
pollution or other hazards which may not be insured against or which Guyana Goldfi elds may elect not to insure 
against because of premium costs or other reasons. Losses from these events may cause Guyana Goldfi elds to incur 
signifi cant costs that could have a material adverse effect upon its fi nancial performance and results of operations.

Environmental Risks and Hazards

All phases of Guyana Goldfi elds’ operations are subject to environmental regulation in the various jurisdictions 
in which it operates. These regulations mandate, among other things, the maintenance of air and water quality
standards and land reclamation. They also set forth limitations on the generation, transportation, storage and 
disposal of solid and hazardous waste. Environmental legislation is evolving in a manner which will require stricter
standards and enforcement, increased fi nes and penalties for noncompliance, more stringent environmental
assessments of proposed projects and a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and their offi cers,
directors and employees. There is no assurance that future changes in environmental regulation, if any, will not 
adversely affect Guyana Goldfi elds’ operations. Environmental hazards may exist on the properties on which
Guyana Goldfi elds holds interests which are unknown to Guyana Goldfi elds at present and which have been 
caused by previous or existing owners or operators of the properties. Government approvals and permits are
currently, and may in the future be required in connection with Guyana Goldfi elds’ operations. To the extent such 
approvals are required and not obtained, Guyana Goldfi elds may be curtailed or prohibited from proceeding with 
planned exploration or development of mineral properties.

Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and permitting requirements may result in enforcement actions 
thereunder, including orders issued by regulatory or judicial authorities causing operations to cease or be curtailed,
and may include corrective measures requiring capital expenditures, installation of additional equipment, or
remedial actions. Parties engaged in mining operations or in the exploration or development of mineral properties 
may be required to compensate those suffering loss or damage by reason of the mining activities and may have civil 
or criminal fi nes or penalties imposed for violations of applicable laws or regulations.

Amendments to current laws, regulations and permits governing operations and activities of mining and
exploration companies, or more stringent implementation thereof, could have a material adverse impact on Guyana 
Goldfi elds and cause increases in exploration expenses or capital expenditures or require abandonment or delays in 
development of new mining properties.

Potential production at certain of Guyana Goldfi elds’ mines may involve the use of sodium cyanide which is a
poison. Should sodium cyanide leak or otherwise be discharged from the containment system then Guyana
Goldfi elds may become subject to liability for clean up work that may not be insured. While all steps will be taken 
to prevent discharges of pollutants into the ground water and the environment, Guyana Goldfi elds may become 
subject to liability for hazards that may not be insured against.

Infrastructure

Mining, processing, development and exploration activities depend, to one degree or another, on adequate
infrastructure. Reliable roads, bridges, power sources and water supply are important determinants, which affect
capital and operating costs. Unusual or infrequent weather phenomena, sabotage, government or other
interference in the maintenance or provision of such infrastructure could adversely affect Guyana Goldfi elds’
operations, fi nancial condition and results of operations.

Uncertainty Relating to Mineral Resources

Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves do not have demonstrated economic viability. Due to the uncertainty 
which may attach to mineral resources, there is no assurance that mineral resources will be upgraded to mineral 
reserves as a result of continued exploration.
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Reliability of Resource Estimates

There is no certainty that any of the mineral resources on any of Guyana Goldfi elds’ properties will be realized. 
Until a deposit is actually mined and processed the quantity of mineral resources and grades must be considered as
estimates only. In addition, the quantity of mineral resources may vary depending on, among other things, metal 
prices. Any material change in quantity of mineral resources, grade or stripping ratio may affect the economic
viability of any project undertaken by Guyana Goldfi elds. In addition, there can be no assurance that gold recoveries
or other metal recoveries in small scale laboratory tests will be duplicated in a larger scale test under on-site
conditions or during production.

Fluctuations in gold and other base or precious metals prices, results of drilling, metallurgical testing and production 
and the evaluation of studies, reports and plans subsequent to the date of any estimate may require revision of such 
estimate. Any material reductions in estimates of mineral resources could have a material adverse effect on Guyana 
Goldfi elds’ results of operations and fi nancial condition.

Uncertainty of Preliminary Assessment Results

Feasibility studies are used to determine the economic viability of a deposit, as are pre-feasibility studies and
preliminary assessments. Feasibility studies are the most detailed and refl ect a higher level of confi dence in the 
reported capital and operating costs. Generally accepted levels of confi dence are plus or minus 15% for feasibility 
studies, plus or minus 25-30% for pre-feasibility studies and plus or minus 35 - 40% for preliminary assessments. 
These levels refl ect the levels of confi dence that exist at the time the study is completed. Accordingly, while the
preliminary assessment contained in the Aurora Report is based on the best information available to the Company 
for the level of study, the Company cannot be certain that actual costs will not signifi cantly exceed the estimated 
cost. While the Company incorporates what it believes is an appropriate contingency factor in cost estimates to 
account for this uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the contingency factor is adequate.

No History of Mineral Production

Guyana Goldfi elds has never had any interest in mineral producing properties. There is no assurance that commercial
quantities of minerals will be discovered at any of the properties of Guyana Goldfi elds or any future properties,
nor is there any assurance that the exploration programs of Guyana Goldfi elds thereon will yield any positive
results. Even if commercial quantities of minerals are discovered, there can be no assurance that any property
of Guyana Goldfi elds will ever be brought to a stage where mineral resources can profi tably be produced thereon. 
Factors which may limit the ability of Guyana Goldfi elds to produce mineral resources from its properties include, 
but are not limited to, the price of the mineral resources which are currently being explored for, availability of
additional capital and fi nancing and the nature of any mineral deposits.

Land Title

Although the title to the properties in which Guyana Goldfi elds holds an interest were reviewed by or on behalf of 
Guyana Goldfi elds, no formal title opinions were delivered to Guyana Goldfi elds and, consequently, no assurances 
can be given that there are no title defects affecting such properties. Title insurance generally is not available, and 
Guyana Goldfi elds’ ability to ensure that it has obtained secure claim to individual mineral properties or mining
concessions may be severely constrained. Guyana Goldfi elds has not conducted surveys of the claims in which 
it holds direct or indirect interests and, therefore, the precise area and location of such claims may be in doubt.
Accordingly, Guyana Goldfi elds’ mineral properties may be subject to prior unregistered liens, agreements, transfers 
or claims, and title may be affected by, among other things, undetected defects.

In addition, Guyana Goldfi elds may be unable to operate its properties as permitted or to enforce its rights with 
respect to its properties.

Competition May Hinder Corporate Growth

The mining industry is competitive in all of its phases. Guyana Goldfi elds faces strong competition from other 
mining companies in connection with the acquisition of properties producing, or capable of producing, precious 
and base metals. Many of these companies have greater fi nancial resources, operational experience and technical 
capabilities than Guyana Goldfi elds. As a result of this competition, Guyana Goldfi elds may be unable to maintain 
or acquire attractive mining properties or skilled resources on terms it considers acceptable or at all. Consequently, 
Guyana Goldfi elds’ revenues, operations and fi nancial condition could be materially adversely affected.
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Additional Capital

The development and exploration of Guyana Goldfi elds’ properties may require substantial additional fi nancing. 
Failure to obtain suffi cient fi nancing may result in delaying or indefi nite postponement of exploration, development 
or production on any or all of Guyana Goldfi elds’ properties or even a loss of property interest. There can be no
assurance that additional capital or other types of fi nancing will be available if needed or that, if available, the terms 
of such fi nancing will be favourable to Guyana Goldfi elds.

The Company does not currently have suffi cient funds to bring the future mine into production at the Aurora
Project. Following completion of the planned Feasibility Study, management, in conjunction with the board of
directors of the Company, will be in the position to assess whether to proceed with the development of the
Aurora Project. Any decision to proceed will be dependent on the ability of the Company to source the additional
fi nancing required, which likely will be equity fi nancing. The amount and timing of these raisings may be
materially impacted by the economic climate in the capital markets. As a result, the cost and availability of equity may
be restricted. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to raise suffi cient funds
to develop a mining operation at the Aurora Project upon terms acceptable to the Company, or at all. See also 
“Global Financial Conditions” above.

Commodity Prices

The price of the Common Shares, Guyana Goldfi elds’ fi nancial results and exploration, development and mining 
activities may in the future be signifi cantly adversely affected by declines in the price of gold. Gold prices fl uctuate 
widely and are affected by numerous factors beyond Guyana Goldfi elds’ control such as the sale or purchase of gold 
by various central banks and fi nancial institutions, interest rates, exchange rates, infl ation or defl ation, fl uctuation
in the value of the United States dollar and foreign currencies, global and regional supply and demand, and the 
political and economic conditions of major gold producing countries throughout the world. The price of gold has 
fl uctuated widely in recent years, and future serious price declines could cause continued development of Guyana 
Goldfi elds’ properties to be impracticable. Future production from Guyana Goldfi elds’ properties is dependent on 
gold prices that are adequate to make these properties economic.

In addition to adversely affecting Guyana Goldfi elds’ reserve and/or resource estimates and its fi nancial condition, 
declining commodity prices can impact operations by requiring a reassessment of the feasibility of a particular 
project. Such a reassessment may be the result of a management decision or may be required under fi nancing
arrangements related to a particular project. Even if the project is ultimately determined to be economically
viable, the need to conduct such a reassessment may cause substantial delays or may interrupt operations until the
reassessment can be completed.

Exchange Rate Fluctuations

Exchange rate fl uctuations may affect the costs that Guyana Goldfi elds incurs in its operations. The appreciation of 
non-US dollar currencies against the US dollar can increase the cost of gold production in US dollar terms. Most of 
the Company’s expenditures that occur in Guyana are paid in U.S. currency. Accordingly, a strengthened U.S. dollar 
relative to the Canadian dollar would negatively impact the Company.

Government Regulation

The mining, processing, development and mineral exploration activities of Guyana Goldfi elds are subject to various
laws governing prospecting, development, production, taxes, labour standards and occupational health, mine
safety, toxic substances, land use, water use, land claims of local people and other matters.

Exploration may also be affected in varying degrees by government regulations with respect to, but not limited 
to, restrictions on future exploration and production, price controls, export controls, currency availability, foreign
exchange controls, income taxes, delays in obtaining or the inability to obtain necessary permits, opposition 
to mining from environmental and other non-governmental organizations, limitations on foreign ownership,
expropriation of property, ownership of assets, environmental legislation, labour relations, limitations on
repatriation of income and return of capital, limitations on mineral exports, high rates of infl ation, increased fi nancing
costs, and site safety. This may affect both Guyana Goldfi elds’ ability to undertake exploration and development 
activities in respect of present and future properties in the manner contemplated, as well as its ability to continue 
to explore, develop and operate those properties in which it has an interest or in respect of which it has obtained 
exploration and development rights to date.
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Although Guyana Goldfi elds believes that its exploration and development activities are currently carried out in 
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, no assurance can be given that new rules and regulations will 
not be enacted or that existing rules and regulations will not be applied in a manner which could limit or curtail 
development or future potential production. Amendments to current laws and regulations governing operations 
and activities of mining and milling or more stringent implementation thereof could have a substantial adverse 
impact on Guyana Goldfi elds.

Political Risks

All of Guyana Goldfi elds’ current operations are presently conducted in Guyana, South America and as such,
Guyana Goldfi elds’ operations are exposed to various levels of political, economic and other risks and uncertainties. 
These risks and uncertainties vary from country to country and include, but are not limited to, currency exchange 
rates; high rates of infl ation; labour unrest; renegotiation or nullifi cation of existing concessions, licenses, permits 
and contracts; changes in taxation policies; restrictions on foreign exchange; and changing political conditions;
currency controls and governmental regulations that favour or require the awarding of contracts to local contractors
or require foreign contractors to employ citizens of, or purchase supplies from, a particular jurisdiction.

Future political actions cannot be predicted and may adversely affect Guyana Goldfi elds. Changes, if any, in mining 
or investment policies or shifts in political attitude in the country of Guyana may adversely affect the Company’s 
business, results of operations and fi nancial condition. Future operations may be affected in varying degrees by
government regulations with respect to, but not limited to, restrictions on production, price controls, export
controls, currency remittance, income taxes, foreign investment, maintenance of claims, environmental legislation, 
land use, land claims of local people, water use and mine safety. The possibility that future governments may adopt 
substantially different policies, which may extend to the expropriation of assets, cannot be ruled out.

Failure to comply strictly with applicable laws, regulations and local practices relating to mineral right applications 
and tenure, could result in loss, reduction or expropriation of entitlements. The occurrence of these various factors 
and uncertainties cannot be accurately predicted and could have an adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated 
business, results of operations and fi nancial condition.

Labour and Employment Matters

While Guyana Goldfi elds has good relations with its employees, these relations may be impacted by changes in the 
scheme of labour relations which may be introduced by the relevant governmental authorities in whose jurisdictions 
Guyana Goldfi elds carries on business. Adverse changes in such legislation may have a material adverse effect on 
Guyana Goldfi elds’ business, results of operations and fi nancial condition.

Subsidiaries

The Company conducts certain of its operations through its subsidiaries, and holds certain of its assets through 
its subsidiaries. Accordingly, any limitation on the transfer of cash or other assets between the Company and its
subsidiaries could restrict the Company’s ability to fund its operations effi ciently. Any such limitations, or the
perception that such limitations may exist now or in the future, could have an adverse impact on the Company’s
valuation and stock price.

Market Price of Common Shares

Securities of micro- and small-cap companies have experienced substantial volatility in the past, often based on 
factors unrelated to the fi nancial performance or prospects of the companies involved. These factors include
macroeconomic developments in North America and globally and market perceptions of the attractiveness of
particular industries. The Company’s share price is also likely to be signifi cantly affected by short-term changes 
in gold prices or in its fi nancial condition or results of operations as refl ected in its quarterly earnings reports. 
Other factors unrelated to Guyana Goldfi elds’ performance that may have an effect on the price of the Common 
Shares include the following: the extent of analytical coverage available to investors concerning Guyana Goldfi elds’
business may be limited if investment banks with research capabilities do not continue to follow the Company; 
lessening in trading volume and general market interest in the Company’s securities may affect an investor’s ability 
to trade signifi cant numbers of Common Shares; the size of the Company’s public fl oat may limit the ability of some 
institutions to invest in the Company’s securities; and a substantial decline in the price of the Common Shares that 
persists for a signifi cant period of time could cause the Company’s securities to be delisted from the exchange on 
which they trade, further reducing market liquidity.
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As a result of any of these factors, the market price of the Common Shares at any given point in time may not a
accurately refl ect Guyana Goldfi elds’ long-term value. Securities class action litigation often has been brought against 
companies following periods of volatility in the market price of their securities. The Company may in the future
be the target of similar litigation. Securities litigation could result in substantial costs and damages and divert
management’s attention and resources.

Future Sales of Common Shares by Existing Shareholders

Sales of a large number of Common Shares in the public markets, or the potential for such sales, could decrease 
the trading price of the Common Shares and could impair the Company’s ability to raise capital through future 
sales of Common Shares. Guyana Goldfi elds has previously completed private placements at prices per share which 
are from time to time lower than the market price of the Common Shares. Accordingly, a signifi cant number of 
shareholders of the Company have an investment profi t in the Common Shares that they may seek to liquidate.

Key Executives

Guyana Goldfi elds is dependent on the services of key executives, including the President and Chief Operating 
Offi cer of the Company, the Chief Executive Offi cer of the Company and a small number of highly skilled and
experienced executives and personnel. Due to the relatively small size of Guyana Goldfi elds, the loss of these
persons or Guyana Goldfi elds’ inability to attract and retain additional highly skilled employees may adversely affect 
its business and future operations.

Confl icts of Interest

Certain of the directors and offi cers of the Company also serve as directors and/or offi cers of other companies 
involved in natural resource exploration and development and consequently there exists the possibility for such
directors and offi cers to be in a position of confl ict. Any decision made by any of such directors and offi cers
involving  the Company will be made in accordance with their duties and obligations to deal fairly and in good 
faith with a view to the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. In addition, each of the directors is 
required to declare and refrain from voting on any matter in which such directors may have a confl ict of interest 
in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Canada Business Corporations Act and other applicable laws.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Except for statements of historical fact relating to the Company, certain information contained in this MD&A
constitutes “forward-looking information” under Canadian securities legislation. Forward-looking information
includes, but is not limited to, statements with respect to the potential of the Company’s properties; the
future price of gold; success of exploration activities; cost and timing of future exploration and development; the
estimation of mineral resources; conclusions of economic evaluations; requirements for additional capital and other 
statements relating to the fi nancial and business prospects of the Company. Generally, forward-looking information
can be identifi ed by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “plans”, “expects” or “does not expect”, “is 
expected”, “budget”, “scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates” or “does not anticipate”,
or “believes”, or variations of such words and phrases or statements that certain actions, events or results “may”, 
“could”, ”would”, “might” or “will be taken”, “occur” or “be achieved”. Forward-looking information is
inherently subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results, 
level of activity, performance or achievements of the Company to be materially different from those expressed or 
implied by such forward-looking information, including but not limited to risks related to:

• the Company’s goal of creating shareholder value by concentrating on the acquisition and development of 
properties that have the potential to contain economic gold deposits;

• the actual timing and content of the feasibility study regarding the “Aurora project”;

• future plans for the Aurora Project and other property interests held by the Company or which may be
acquired on a going forward basis, if at all;

• management’s outlook regarding future trends;

• the Company’s ability to meet its working capital needs at the current level in the short term; and

• governmental regulation and environmental liability.
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Forward-looking information is based on the reasonable assumptions, estimates, analysis and opinions of
management made in light of its experience and its perception of trends, current conditions and expected
developments, as well as other factors that management believes to be relevant and reasonable in the
circumstances at the date that such statements are made, and are inherently subject to known and unknown risks, 
uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results, level of activity, performance or achievements 
of the Company to be materially different from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking information, 
including but not limited to risks related to: unexpected events and delays during permitting; the possibility that
future exploration results will not be consistent with the Company’s expectations; timing and availability of
external fi nancing on acceptable terms and in light of the current decline in global liquidity and credit
availability; uncertainty of mineral resources; future prices of gold; currency exchange rates; government regulation of
mining operations; failure of equipment or processes to operate as anticipated; risks inherent in gold exploration
and development including environmental hazards, industrial accidents, unusual or unexpected geological
formations; and uncertain political and economic environments.

Although management of the Company has attempted to identify important factors that could cause actual results 
to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking information, there may be other factors that cause 
results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. There can be no assurance that such statements will prove 
to be accurate, as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. 

Accordingly, readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking information. The Company does not
undertake to update any forward-looking information, except in accordance with applicable securities laws.

Additional information relating to the Company, including its Annual Information Form for the most recently
completed fi scal year, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements of Guyana Goldfi elds Inc. were prepared by management in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Management acknowledges responsibility for 
the preparation and presentation of the consolidated fi nancial statements, including responsibility for signifi cant 
accounting judgments and estimates and the choice of accounting principles and methods that are appropriate to 
the Company’s circumstances. The signifi cant accounting policies of the Company are summarized in Note 2 to the 
consolidated fi nancial statements.

Management has established systems of internal control over the fi nancial reporting process that are designed to 
provide reasonable assurance that relevant and reliable fi nancial information is produced.

The Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing and approving the consolidated fi nancial statements together 
with other fi nancial information of the Company and for ensuring that management fulfi lls its fi nancial reporting
responsibilities. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfi lling this responsibility. The Audit
Committee meets with management as well as with the independent auditors to review the internal controls over 
the fi nancial reporting process, the consolidated fi nancial statements together with other fi nancial information of 
the Company. The Audit Committee reports its fi ndings to the Board of Directors for its consideration in approving 
the consolidated fi nancial statements together with other fi nancial information of the Company for issuance to the
shareholders.

Management recognizes its responsibility for conducting the Company’s affairs in compliance with established 
fi nancial standards, and applicable laws and regulations, and for maintaining proper standards of conduct for its 
activities.

/s/ J. Patrick Sheridan     /s/ Paul J. Murphy
Chief Executive Offi cer     Chief Financial Offi cer

Toronto, Canada
January 26, 2012

financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Guyana Goldfi elds Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fi nancial statements of Guyana Goldfi elds Inc. and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at October 31, 2011 and the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash fl ows
for the year then ended, and the related notes, which comprise a summary of signifi cant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated fi nancial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated fi nancial statements in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated fi nancial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fi nancial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consoli-
dated fi nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the consolidated fi nancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial position of 
Guyana Goldfi elds Inc. and its subsidiaries as at October 31, 2011 and their operations and their cash fl ows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1 in the consolidated fi nancial statements which describes 
matters and conditions that indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast signifi cant doubt about the 
corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Other Matter
The fi nancial statements of Guyana Goldfi elds Inc. and its subsidiaries for the year ended October 31, 2010 were 
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodifi ed opinion on those statements on December 14, 2010.

(Signed) “PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP”
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants
PwC Tower, 18 York Street, Suite 2600, Toronto ON M5J 0B2

T: +1 416-863-1133   F: +1 416-365-8215   www.pwc.com/ca 
“PwC” referes to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.

January 26, 2012
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consolidated balance sheets (expressed in cdn. dollars) - for the year ended october 31, 2011

As at October 31, 2011  2010

Assets

Current assets

 Cash  $ 21,739,110  $ 50,078,581

 Bank investment certifi cates  19,438,017  15,610,861

 Short-term investments (Note 6) 2,409,508  1,035,508

 Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses  1,137,367  658,063

  44,724,002  67,383,013

Restricted cash (Note 5)  334,602  275,562

Investment in Guyana Precious Metals Inc. (Note 7)  -  372,703

Property and equipment (Note 8)  7,305,508  7,855,465

Mineral exploration properties (Note 9)  139,745,962  89,577,516

  $192,110,074  $165,464,259

Liabilities

Current liabilities

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 14)  $ 4,789,715  $ 2,518,567

Future income tax liability (Note 13)  8,700,000  -

  13,489,715  2,518,567

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital (Note 10)  200,117,391  179,891,318

Warrants (Note 11)  -  2,694,890

Stock options (Note 12)  16,192,807  12,313,469

Contributed surplus  5,299,290  4,271,123

Defi cit  (42,989,129)  (36,225,108)

  178,620,359  162,945,692

  $192,110,074  $165,464,259

See accompanying notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.

Nature of operations and going concern (Note 1)

Contingencies (Note 15)

Commitments (Note 16)

Subsequent events (Note 18)

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

“J. Patrick Sheridan”          “Alan Ferry”
    Director   Director
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Years ended October 31,  2011  2010

Operating expenses

Amortization  $ 45,579  $ 10,816

Loss (gain) on foreign exchange  308,419  (46,925)

Management and consulting fees (Note 14)  907,769  899,354

Offi ce  2,031,346  1,928,236

Professional fees  579,923  891,974

Shareholder information  97,954 90,465

Stock-based compensation (Note 12)  5,406,642  3,751,027

Transfer, listing and fi ling fees  234,781  100,361

Loss before the undernoted  (9,612,413)  (7,625,308)

Other (expense) income

Gain (loss) on sale of short-term investments  136,736  (685,900)

Gain on sale of mineral properties (Note 9)  1,496,888  -

Gain on sale of Guyana Precious Metals Inc. (Note 7)  -  399,420

Interest income  186,750  421,667

Share of Guyana Precious Metals Inc. net income (Note 7)  -  58,000

Unrealized gain on short-term investments (Note 6)  1,101,297 1,188,748

Capital and other taxes  (73,279)  (24,074)

 2,848,392 1,357,861

Net loss and comprehensive loss  $ (6,764,021)  $ (6,267,447)

Net loss per share

Basic  $ (0.08)  $ (0.08)

Diluted  $ (0.08) $ (0.08)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Basic  82,777,984  74,746,266

Diluted  82,777,984  74,746,266

See accompanying notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.

consolidated statements of operations & comprehensive loss (expressed in cdn. dollars)
for the year ended october 31, 2011
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 Share    Stock Contributed
 Capital  Warrants  Options  surplus  Defi cit  Total

Balance
Oct.31, 2009  $ 88,404,924  $ 6,027,715  $ 9,815,762  $ 4,268,863  $(29,957,661)  $ 78,559,603

Shares issued on
exercise of options  4,308,451  -  -  -  -  4,308,451

Value of options
exercised  3,275,030  -  (3,275,030)  -  -  -

Shares issued on
exercise of warrants  12,391,592  -  -  -  -  12,391,592

Value of
warrants exercised  

3,330,565  (3,330,565)  -  -  -  -

Expiry of warrants  -  (2,260)  -  2,260  -  -

Value of options
granted and vested -  -  1,929,543  -  -  1,929,543
during the year 

Value of previously
granted options vested -  -  3,843,194 -    3,843,194
during the year  

Shares issued in
public offering (Note 10(i))  72,627,500  -  -  -  -  72,627,500

Share issue
expenses (Note 10(i)) (4,446,744)  -  -  -  -  (4,446,744)

Net loss for the year  -  -  -  -  (6,267,447)  (6,267,447)

Balance,
Oct. 31, 2010  $ 179,891,318  $ 2,694,890  $ 12,313,469  $ 4,271,123  $(36,225,108)  $162,945,692

Shares issued on
exercise of options  5,947,740  -  - -  -  5,947,740

Value of
options exercised  3,971,443  -  (3,971,443)  -  -  -

Shares issued on
exercise of warrants  7,612,000  - -  -  -  7,612,000

Value of
warrants exercised  2,694,890  (2,694,890)  -  -  -  -

Value of options
granted and vested -  -  5,051,025  -  -  5,051,025
during the period  

Value of previously
granted options vested - -  3,827,923  -  -  3,827,923
during the period  

Forfeited options  -  -  (1,028,167)  1,028,167  -  -

Net loss for the year  -  -    -  (6,764,021)  (6,764,021)

Balance,
October 31, 2011  $ 200,117,391  $ -  $ 16,192,807  $ 5,299,290  $(42,989,129)  $178,620,359

See accompanying notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.

consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity (expressed in cdn. dollars)
for the year ended october 31, 2011

36

AnnualReport_Inside_2012_FINAL.indd   36 12-03-09   5:27 PM



Years ended October 31,  2011  2010

Cash (used in) provided by

Operations

Net loss  $ (6,764,021)  $ (6,267,447)

Items not involving cash

 Amortization  45,579  10,816

 (Gain)/loss on sale of short-term investments  (136,736)  685,900

 Share of Guyana Precious Metals Inc. net income (Note 7)  -  (58,000)

 Gain on sale of Guyana Precious Metals Inc. (Note 7)  -  (399,420)

 Stock-based compensation (Note 12)  5,406,642  3,751,027

 Unrealized gain on short-term investments  (1,101,297)  (1,188,748)

 Gain on sale of mineral exploration properties (Note 9) (1,496,888)  -

 Foreign exchange  (54,924)  155,852

Changes in non-cash working capital

 Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses  (479,304)  (31,954)

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  (597,278)  429,162

  (5,178,227) (2,912,812)

Financing

Securities issued for cash  -  72,627,500

Share issue expenses  - (4,446,744)

Proceeds from exercise of stock options  5,947,740  4,308,451

Proceeds from exercise of warrants  7,612,000  12,391,592

  13,559,740 84,880,799

Investing

Bank investment certifi cates  (3,827,156)  (3,529,861)

Restricted cash  (59,040)  (161,822)

Proceeds from sale of short-term investments  236,736  449,900

Purchase of short-term investments  -  (164,000)

Purchase of property and equipment  (2,096,117)  (8,224,042)

Proceeds from the sale of Guyana Precious Metals Inc. (Note 7)  - 490,928

Proceeds from sale of mineral exploration properties  6,138,262  -

Expenditures on mineral exploration properties  (37,168,593) (31,093,188)

  (36,775,908) (42,232,085)

Net change in cash (28,394,395)  39,735,902

Effect of exchange rate on cash held in foreign currency  54,924  (155,852)

Cash, beginning of period  50,078,581  10,498,531

Cash, end of period  $ 21,739,110  $ 50,078,581

See accompanying notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.

consolidated statements of cash flows (expressed in cdn. dollars) - for the year ended october 31, 2011
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1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN
Guyana Goldfi elds Inc. (the “Company” or “GGI”) is engaged in the acquisition, exploration, evaluation and
development of principally gold resource properties in Guyana. The Company is in the process of completing 
its defi nitive feasibility study for the Aurora project. The recovery of amounts capitalized for mineral exploration
properties in the consolidated balance sheets is dependant upon the existence of economically recoverable
reserves, the ability of the Company to arrange appropriate fi nancing to complete the development of the
properties and upon future profi table production or proceeds from their disposition.

These consolidated fi nancial statements have been prepared using Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) applicable to a “going concern”, which assume that the Group will continue in operation 
for the foreseeable future and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course
of operations. As at October 31, 2011 the Company had no sources of operating cash fl ows and does not
have suffi cient cash to fund the development of the Aurora or Aranka Projects and therefore will require
additional funding which, if not raised, would result in the curtailment of activities and project delays. The time line 
to build the Project is now primarily dependent on management’s successful execution of the fi nancing processes
aforementioned.

There can be no assurances that the Company’s fi nancing alternatives will be successful and, as a result, there 
is signifi cant doubt regarding the “going concern” assumption and, accordingly, the ultimate use of accounting
principles applicable to a going concern. These consolidated fi nancial statements do not refl ect adjustments that 
would be necessary if the “going concern” assumption were not appropriate, in which case adjustments, which 
could be material, to the carrying values of the assets and liabilities, the reported expenses and the statement of 
fi nancial position classifi cations would be necessary.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation

These consolidated fi nancial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries: 
Aranka Gold Inc. (“Aranka” incorporated in Canada) and its wholly-owned subsidiaries Aranka Gold (Barbados)
Inc. (incorporated in Barbados) and its wholly-owned subsidiary Aranka Gold (Guyana) Inc. (incorporated in
Guyana, South America), Coppercorp Inc. (“Coppercorp” incorporated in Canada), Guygold (Barbados) Inc.
(incorporated in Barbados), and GuyGold Inc. (incorporated in Guyana, South America). These consolidated fi nancial 
statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
(“Canadian GAAP”). All references to the Company should be treated as references to the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Use of estimates

The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles 
(“Canadian GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fi nancial statements 
and the reported amount of expenses during the year. The most signifi cant estimates and assumptions include the 
value of the mineral exploration properties, the valuation of stock based compensation and other stock based pay-
ments, the valuation of warrants, the useful lives of property and equipment, and determination of future income 
tax liabilities. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates. Management believes that the estimates 
are reasonable.

Financial instruments and comprehensive income (loss)

All fi nancial instruments are classifi ed into one of the following fi ve categories: held for trading, held to maturity, 
loans and receivables, available for sale fi nancial assets or other fi nancial liabilities. All fi nancial instruments, including
derivatives, are measured in the balance sheet at fair value except for loans and receivables, held to maturity
investments and other fi nancial liabilities which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
Subsequent measurement and changes in fair value will depend on their initial classifi cation, as follows: held for 
trading fi nancial assets are measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of 
operations in the period in which they arise; available for sale fi nancial instruments are measured at fair value with 
changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or impaired at 
which time the amounts would be recorded in the statement of operations.

notes to consolidated financial statements (expressed in cdn. dollars)
for the year ended october 31, 2011
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Offi ce furniture is stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided on a 20% declining
balance basis per annum, which represents the estimated useful life of the related offi ce furniture.

Leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided on a straight 
line basis over the term of the lease.

Impairment of long lived assets

The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of its long lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
when estimated future cash fl ows resulting from the use of an asset and its eventual disposition is less than its
carrying amount. The recoverability of costs incurred on mineral exploration properties is dependent upon numerous
factors including exploration results, environmental risks, commodity risks, political risks, and the Company’s ability 
to obtain profi table production.

Asset retirement obligations

The Company is required to estimate the fair value of any asset retirement obligations as a liability in the period in 
which the related environmental disturbance occurs and the present value of the associated future costs can be 
reasonably estimated. As of October 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company has not incurred and is not committed to 
any asset retirement obligations in respect of its mineral exploration properties.

Income taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability method of tax allocation for accounting for income taxes. Under this 
method, future income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the fi nancial
reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the substantively enacted tax rates and 
laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to be reversed. Future income taxes are recorded to 
recognize tax benefi ts only to the extent that, based on available evidence, it is more likely than not that they will 
be realized.

Foreign currency translation

The Company translates monetary assets and liabilities at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date 
and non monetary assets and liabilities at historical exchange rates. Income and expenses are translated at average 
rates in the month they occurred. Gains and losses on translation are recorded in loss from operations.

Loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding during the year. The diluted loss per share gives effect to the exercise of any option or warrant 
for which the exercise price is lower than the average market price during the year using the treasury stock method.

Other income
Interest income derived from cash, bank investment certifi cates and other investments is recognized using the
effective interest rate method.

Realized gains and losses on disposal of short-term investments and unrealized gains and losses in the value of 
short-term investments are refl ected in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss and are 
calculated on an average cost basis.

Stock-based compensation

The Company uses the fair value method to account for stock options granted to offi cers, directors, employees 
and consultants. The fair value is determined by the Black-Scholes option pricing model with assumptions for risk
free interest rates, dividend yields, volatility factors of the expected market price of the Company’s common shares 
and expected life of the options. Compensation cost for offi cers, directors and employees is measured at fair value 
at the date of grant and is either expensed or capitalized to mineral exploration properties over the vesting period, 
with an offsetting credit to shareholders’ equity stock options. Compensation cost for consultants is measured at 
the earliest date at which performance is complete or the options vested, and is either expensed or capitalized 
to mineral exploration properties over the service period with an offsetting credit to shareholders’ equity stock
options. Upon the exercise of stock options, consideration paid together with the amount previously recognized in 
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shareholders’ equity stock options is recorded as an increase to share capital. The Company does not incorporate 
an estimated forfeiture rate for stock options that will not vest, but accounts for forfeitures as a change in estimate 
in the period in which they occur. In the event that vested stock options expire without being exercised, previously 
recognized compensation costs associated with such rewards are not reversed.

Other stock-based payments

The Company accounts for other stock-based payments based on the fair value of services granted or the equity 
instruments issued in exchange for the receipt of goods and services from non employees by using the stock price 
and other measurement assumptions as at the measurement date, whichever is the more reliably measured.

Recent accounting pronouncements

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)

In January 2006, the CICA’s Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) formally adopted the strategy of replacing
Canadian GAAP with IFRS for Canadian enterprises with public accountability. On February 13, 2008, the AcSB 
confi rmed that the use of IFRS will be required in 2011 for publicly accountable profi t oriented enterprises. For 
these entities, IFRS will be required for interim and annual fi nancial statements relating to fi scal years beginning 
on or after January 1, 2011. The Company will be required to have prepared, in time for its fi rst quarter of fi scal 
2012 fi ling, comparative fi nancial statements in accordance with IFRS. The transition from current Canadian GAAP 
to IFRS is a signifi cant undertaking that may materially affect the Company’s reported fi nancial position and results 
of operations.

3. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company manages its capital with the following objectives:

• to ensure suffi cient fi nancial fl exibility to achieve the ongoing business objectives including funding of
future growth opportunities, and pursuit of accretive acquisitions; and

• to maximize shareholder return through enhancing the share value.

The Company monitors its capital structure and makes adjustments according to market conditions in an effort to 
meet its objectives given the current outlook of the business and industry in general. The Company may manage its 
capital structure by issuing new shares, repurchasing outstanding shares, adjusting capital spending, or disposing 
of assets. The capital structure is reviewed by Management and the Board of Directors on an ongoing basis, and is 
believed to be appropriate given the relative size of the Company.

The properties in which the Company currently has an interest are in the exploration or feasibility stage. As such 
the Company is dependent on external fi nancing to fund its activities. In order to carry out its planned exploration
programs and pay for administrative costs, the Company will spend its existing working capital and raise additional 
amounts as needed.

In light of the above, the Company will continue to assess new properties and seek to acquire an interest in
additional properties if it believes there is suffi cient potential and if it has adequate fi nancial resources to do so.

The Company considers its capital to be equity, comprising share capital, warrants, stock options, contributed
surplus and defi cit which at October 31, 2011 totalled $178,620,359 (October 31, 2010 - $162,945,692). The 
Company manages capital through its fi nancial and operational forecasting processes. The Company reviews its 
working capital and forecasts its future cash fl ows based on operating expenditures, and other investing and
fi nancing activities. The forecast is regularly updated based on exploration and development activities. Selected 
information is frequently provided to the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors does not
establish quantitative return on capital criteria for management but rather relies on the expertise of the Company’s
management team to sustain the future development of the business. The Company’s capital management
objectives, policies and processes have remained unchanged during the years ended October 31, 2011 and 2010.
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4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of fi nancial risks: liquidity risk, market risk (including interest rate, 
currency rate and price risk) and credit risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management team with guidance from the Board of Directors. 
The Board of Directors also provides regular guidance for overall risk management.

(a) Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not have suffi cient cash resources to meet its fi nancial obligations 
as they come due. The time line to build the Aurora Mine Property into a producing mine is dependent on a positive
defi nitive feasibility study anticipated in late February 2012 and adequate project fi nancing. There can be no
assurance the planned fi nancing activities of the Company will be successful in raising adequate capital.

The Company’s liquidity and operating results may be adversely affected if its access to the capital market is hindered,
whether as a result of a downturn in stock market conditions generally or as a result of conditions specifi c to the 
Company. The Company generates cash fl ow primarily from its fi nancing activities and interest income earned on 
its cash, bank investment certifi cates and short-term investments. The Company has cash of $21,739,110 (October 
31, 2010 - $50,078,581) to settle current liabilities of $4,789,715 (October 31, 2010 - $2,518,567). The Company
regularly evaluates its cash position to ensure preservation and security of capital as well as maintenance of
liquidity. All of the Company’s fi nancial liabilities are subject to normal trade terms.

(b) Market risk is the risk that the fair value of, or future cash fl ows from, the Company’s fi nancial instruments will
signifi cantly fl uctuate due to changes in market prices. The value of the fi nancial instruments can be affected by 
changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices. In the normal course of business, the Company 
is exposed to market risks as a result of its investments in publicly traded companies. During periods of signifi cant 
broader market volatility or volatility experienced by the resource/commodity markets, the value of the Company’s 
investment portfolio can be vulnerable to market fl uctuations. Sensitivity to a plus or minus 10% change in the bid 
price of the Company’s investments in public companies with all other variables held constant would not have a 
material impact on the net loss and comprehensive loss for the years ended October 31, 2011 and 2010.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of, or future cash fl ows from, the Company’s fi nancial instruments will 
fl uctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s functional currency is the Canadian dollar 
and major purchases are transacted in Canadian dollars. The Company funds certain operations, exploration and 
administrative expenses in Guyana on a cash call basis using US dollars converted from its Canadian dollar bank 
accounts held in Canada. The Company maintains US dollar bank accounts in Canada, Barbados and Guyana and 
Guyanese bank accounts in Guyana. The Company is subject to gains and losses due to fl uctuations in the US and 
Guyanese dollar against the Canadian dollar. Sensitivity to a plus or minus 10% change in all foreign currencies 
(Guyanese and US dollars) against the Canadian dollar with all other variables held constant as at October 31, 
2011, would affect net loss and comprehensive loss by approximately $2 million (October 31, 2010 - $435,000).

Interest rate risk is the impact that changes in interest rates could have on the Company’s earnings and
assets. In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to interest rate fl uctuations as a result of cash 
equivalents being invested in interest-bearing instruments. Interest rate risk is minimal as the Company’s interest
bearing instruments have fi xed interest rates.

(c) Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfi ll its payment obligations. The
Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash, bank investment certifi cates, restricted cash and accounts
receivable. The Company has no signifi cant concentration of credit risk arising from operations. Cash, bank
investment certifi cates and restricted cash are held with fi nancial institutions, from which management believes 
the risk of loss to be minimal. Accounts receivable include accrued interest and deposits held with consultants
and other service providers; approximately $193,000 represents the maximum credit exposure (October 31, 2010 
- approximately $260,000). Accounts receivable are in good standing as of October 31, 2011. Management
believes that the credit risk concentration with respect to accounts receivable is minimal.

(d) Fair value

As at October 31, 2011, the fair value of cash, bank investment certifi cates and restricted cash totalling $41,511,729 
(October 31, 2010 - $65,965,004) are measured based on level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (October 31, 2010 - same).
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8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

October 31, 2011

  Accumulated  Net Book 
 Cost  Amortization  Value

Earth moving equipment  $ 9,272,009  $ 2,804,315  $ 6,467,694

Construction equipment  641,771  105,158  536,613

Field equipment  222,056  62,847  159,209

Computer equipment  82,745  28,978  53,767

Offi ce furniture  58,520  12,476  46,044

Leasehold improvements  59,603  17,422  42,181

 $ 10,336,704  $ 3,031,196  $ 7,305,508

October 31, 2010

  Accumulated  Net Book 
 Cost  Amortization  Value

Earth moving equipment  $ 7,719,378  $ 451,253 $ 7,268,125

Construction equipment  154,196  5,782  148,414

Field equipment  165,417  8,417  157,000

Computer equipment  65,473  11,918  53,555

Offi ce furniture  55,198  1,380  53,818

Leasehold improvements  174,553  -  174,553

 $ 8,334,215  $ 478,750  $ 7,855,465

9. MINERAL EXPLORATION PROPERTIES

 Opening  Additions   Closing
October 31, 2011  Balance  (Disposals)  Write-down  Balance

Guyana, South America

Aurora Mine Property  $ 72,464,027  $ 46,068,225 (a)  $ -  $118,532,252
Aranka Gold Project  13,290,245  7,923,464 (b)(c)  -  21,213,709
Arakaka Properties  3,823,242  (3,823,242)  -  -
Peters Mine Property  1  (1) (c)  -  -
 89,577,515  50,168,446 -  139,745,961
Ontario, Canada

Langis Mine  1  -  - 1
 $ 89,577,516  $ 50,168,446  $ -  $139,745,962

(a) Included in additions is $2,287,945 of equipment amortization and $2,031,642 of stock-based compensation 
of employees and consultants attributed to the Aurora Mine Property.

(b) Included in additions is $218,923 of equipment amortization and $1,440,664 of stock-based compensation of 
employees and consultants attributed to the Aranka Gold Project.

(c) On April 26, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with Guyana Precious for the sale of its Peters Mine 
and Aremu Properties in Guyana, for a purchase price of US$2,400,000, payable in cash at closing. The transaction
was completed on July 7, 2011. A gain of $1,515,019 was recorded for the sale of Peters Mine and Aremu
Properties (note 14(d)).
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Opening  Additions   Closing
October 31, 2010  Balance  (Disposals)  Write-down  Balance

Guyana, South America
Aurora Mine Property  $ 49,710,588 $ 22,753,439 (d)  $ -  $ 72,464,027
Aranka Gold Project  6,261,428  7,028,817 (e)  -  13,290,245
Arakaka Properties  -  3,823,242  -  3,823,242
Peters Mine Property  1  -  -  1

55,972,017  33,605,498 -  89,577,515
Ontario, Canada
Langis Mine  1  -  -  1

$ 55,972,018  $ 33,605,498  $ -  $ 89,577,516

(d) Included in additions is $438,080 of equipment amortization and $938,185 of stock-based compensation of 
employees and consultants attributed to the Aurora Mine Property.

(e) Included in additions is $27,372 of equipment amortization and $1,083,525 of stock-based compensation of 
employees and consultants attributed to the Aranka Gold Project.

Aurora Mine Property

The Company has acquired 100% of the mineral exploration rights to the Aurora Mine Property pursuant to an 
agreement dated May 20, 1998 between the Company and Alfro Alphonso (“Alphonso”). In accordance with this 
agreement, the Company is required to make annual advance royalty payments to Alphonso in the aggregate of
US $225,000 per year (the “Advance Royalty Payments”) during the three year period following the commence-
ment of commercial production. The Company is also required to pay a net smelter royalty of 2% to Alphonso 
(against which all Advance Royalty Payments shall be credited) upon the later to occur of (a) commencement of 
commercial production; and (b) the earlier of (i) the date which is three and one half years following commencement
of commercial production on the Aurora Mine Property; and (ii) reimbursement to the Company of all expenditures 
incurred in commencing commercial production on the Aurora Mine Property. The Company’s mineral exploration 
right in the Aurora Mine Property is also subject to an additional net smelter royalty (“NSR”) of up to 5% payable 
to, and determined at the discretion of, the GGMC.

In March 2004, the agreement with Alphonso was amended. In lieu of Alphonso’s interest and rights to advances
in and to production royalty and net smelter royalty, the Company agreed to pay Alphonso an annual fee of US 
$100,000, payable on January 2 each year, up to a maximum of US $1,500,000. Such payments shall be due and 
payable for such period that the Company maintains an interest in the property. As at October 31, 2011 total
payments of US $700,000 have been made (October 31, 2010 - US $600,000).

Aranka Gold Project

The Company maintains its interest in the Aranka property by making minimal annual acreage payments of
approximately $250,000 and specifi c cash payments to vendors of land purchased by the Company within 
the Aranka property. NSR’s are held by the original vendors and vary from 1.5% to 2% on future production.
Exploration expenditures in fi scal 2011 and 2010 have focused on Sulphur Rose which is within the Aranka
property.

Arakaka Properties

In fi scal 2010, the Company entered into an agreement dated October 14, 2010 with Newmont Overseas
Exploration Limited (“Newmont”), pursuant to which Newmont transferred to Aranka Barbados its 70.1% participating
interest and all of its other rights and obligations under an agreement dated September 27, 2005 between
Newmont, Strata Gold Corporation and StrataGold Guyana Inc. which established a venture known as the “BRL 
Venture” with respect to the Barama Reconnaissance Permit issued by the GGMC. The agreement with Strata Gold 
Corporation and StrataGold Guyana Inc. calls for the companies to jointly agree on exploration programs over the 
acreage and contains dilution provisions should either party not fund their respective obligations. In consideration 
for such transfer, the Company made a cash payment to Newmont in the amount of US $3,734,000 (approximately 
C $3.8 million).
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In fi scal 2011, Takara Resources Inc. agreed to purchase the Company’s 70.1% participating interest in the Arakaka 
properties, for a purchase price of US$3,734,000, payable in cash at closing. The transaction was completed in June 
2011. A loss of $18,131 was recorded for the sale of Arakaka properties.

10. SHARE CAPITAL
The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of common shares. The issued and outstanding common 
shares consist of the following:

 Number of Shares  Amount

Balance, October 31, 2009  65,756,503  $ 88,404,924
Shares issued in public offering (i)  10,450,000  72,627,500
Share issue expenses (i)  -  (4,446,744)
Issued on exercise of options  1,546,342  4,308,451
Value of options exercised  -  3,275,030
Issued on exercise of warrants (ii)  3,097,898 2,391,592
Value of warrants exercised  -  3,330,565
Balance, October 31, 2010  80,850,743  179,891,318
Issued on exercise of options  1,159,450  5,947,740
Value of options exercised  -  3,971,443
Issued on exercise of warrants  1,730,000  7,612,000
Value of warrants exercised  -  2,694,890
Balance, October 31, 2011  83,740,193  $200,117,391

(i) On January 25, 2010, the Company closed a public offering of 10,000,000 common shares at a price of $6.95 
per common share for cash consideration of $69,500,000. In connection with the offering, the underwriters were 
paid a 5.5% commission totaling $3,822,500.

On February 23, 2010, the Company issued 450,000 common shares at a price of $6.95 per common share for 
cash consideration of $3,127,500 related to the over-allotment option. In connection with the over-allotment, the 
underwriters were paid a 5.5% commission totaling $172,013.

Total share issuance costs of $4,446,744 were incurred in relation to the offering.

(ii) On July 29, 2010, the Company announced that it has accelerated the expiry date of its warrants to September 
28, 2010. As of September 28, 2010, 3,097,898 warrants were exercised raising cash proceeds of $12,391,592 
and 2,102 warrants expired unexercised.

11. WARRANTS
The following table shows the continuity of warrants during the years presented:

 Number of  Allocated  Average 
 Warrants  Value Exercise Price

Balance, October 31, 2009  4,830,000  $ 6,027,715  $ 4.14

Exercised (Note 10(ii))  (3,097,898)  (3,330,565)  4.00

Expired (Note 10(ii))  (2,102)  (2,260)  4.00

Balance, October 31, 2010  1,730,000  2,694,890  4.40

Exercised  (1,730,000)  (2,694,890)  4.40

Balance, October 31, 2011  -  $ -  $ -
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12. STOCK OPTIONS
The Company’s stock option plan was approved by the shareholders of the Company on April 7, 2009, for the 
purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating service providers by providing them an opportunity, through share 
options, to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company and benefi t from its growth. The number of stock options 
that may be granted under the plan is limited to not more than 10% of the issued common shares of the Company 
at the time of the stock option grant. The exercise price of stock options granted in accordance with the plan will 
be not less than the closing price of the common shares on the trading day immediately prior to the effective date 
of grant.

The following table shows the continuity of stock options during the years presented:

 Number of Allocated Value of  Weighted Average
 Options Vested Options   Exercise Price

Balance, October 31, 2009  5,870,000  $ 9,815,762  $ 3.71

Value of options granted & vested 1,480,000  1,929,543  7.28

Value of options previously granted
and vested during the year  

-  3,843,194  -

Exercised  (1,546,342)  (3,275,030)  2.79

Balance, October 31, 2010  5,803,658  12,313,469  4.89

Value of options granted & vested 1,017,083  5,051,025  9.97

Value of options granted & not vested 1,287,917  -  8.87

Value of options previously granted
and vested during the year  

-  3,827,923  -

Exercised  (1,159,450)  (3,971,443)  5.13

Forfeited  (273,750)  (1,028,167)  6.48

Balance, October 31, 2011  6,675,458  $ 16,192,807  $ 6.46

Stock-based compensation is comprised of:

October 31,   2011  2010

Value of options granted and vested during the year   $ 5,051,025  $ 1,929,543

Value of previously granted options vested during the year  3,827,923  3,843,194

Deduct value of stock options vested and capitalized
to mineral exploration properties (Note 9)   

(3,472,306)  (2,021,710)

$ 5,406,642  $ 3,751,027

The Company determined the fair value of the stock options granted under the Company’s stock option plan using 
the Black-Scholes option model with the following assumptions on a weighted average basis:

Options granted to offi cers, directors and employees

October 31,   2011  2010

Fair value exercise price   $ 9.86  $ 7.27

Risk-free interest rate   1.65 %  1.89 %

Dividend yield   -  -

Expected volatility   75.48 %  72.96 %

Expected term (in years)   3.07  3.36
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Options granted to consultants

October 31,   2011 2010

Fair value exercise price   $ 6.41 $ -

Risk-free interest rate   1.42 %  - %

Dividend yield  -  -

Expected volatility   54.79 %  - %

Expected term (in years)   1.92  -

The weighted average fair value on the grant date, of options granted during the year ended October 31, 2011, 
was $4.96 (2010 - $3.67).

The following are the stock options outstanding as at October 31, 2011:

Range of exercise Weighted average  Weighted average  Number of  Number of
exercise exercise  contractual  options options
prices ($) price ($)  life (years)  outstanding  exercisable

$2.69 to $3.50  2.88  1.77  2,232,958  2,232,958
$3.51 to $7.00  5.76  2.10  1,727,500  1,702,500
$7.01 to $10.50  9.71  2.23  2,380,000  1,058,750
$10.51 to $11.10  10.82  1.24  335,000  282,500
 6.46  1.99  6,675,458  5,276,708

13. INCOME TAXES
(a) Provision for income taxes

The Company’s effective income tax rate differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the federal 
and provincial statutory rate of 28.58% (2010 - 31.50%) to the net loss. The reason for the difference is as follows:

October 31,  2011  2010

Net loss  $ (6,764,021)  $ (6,267,447)
Expected tax recovery at statutory rates (1,933,157)  (1,974,246)

Increase (decrease) resulting from:

Unrealized gain on short-term investments  -  (187,228)
Change in valuation allowance  (1,586,498)  1,001,810
Accounting gain on sale of Guyana Precious  -  (125,817)
Stock-based compensation  1,545,218  1,181,574
Share of Guyana Precious net income  (427,811)  (18,270)
Rate change  (101,496) 511,905
Share issue costs  (248,317)  (389,728)
Adjustment to balances previously recognized  2,990,749  -
Set up capital losses in Guyana  (335,052)  -
Other  96,364  -

 $ - $ -
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(b) Future tax balances

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to future income tax assets and future income tax liabilities
are as follows:

October 31,  2011  2010

Non-capital losses  $ 2,725,426  $ 2,467,725
Net capital losses  472,520  117,565
Property and equipment  (1,100,353)  118,384
Share issue costs  718,972  967,289
Equity investment  -  399,586
Mineral exploration properties  -  188,444
Guyana branch mineral properties  (8,700,000)  -
Investments  12,164  156,234
Valuation allowance  (2,828,729)  (4,415,227)
Net future income tax liability  $ (8,700,000) $ -

(c) Losses carried forward

The Company has non-capital losses that will expire, if not utilized, as follows:

 2013  $ 81,372
 2014  276,603
 2015  410,032
 2026  743,503
 2027  99,892
 2028  -
 2029  3,171,893
 2030  1,234,343
 2031  4,884,067

$ 10,901,705

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Company had the following related party transactions during the periods presented:

October 31,  2011  2010

Operating expenses:

Management fees to offi cers of the Company  $ 237,900  $ 313,816

Consulting fees to an offi cer of the Company  266,671  125,000

Consulting fees to a company controlled by an offi cer of the Company  27,633  -

Management fees to a company controlled by a former offi cer of the Company  -  17,500

Accounting fees to a company controlled by a former offi cer of the Company  -  51,070

Consulting fees to a company controlled by a director of the Company  26,000 30,000

Consulting fees to directors of the Company 54,000  45,000

Mineral exploration expenditures:
Consulting fees to offi cers and directors of the Company  $ 456,394  $ 482,777
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(b) Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the following amounts due to related parties:

October 31,  2011  2010
To offi cers of the Company  $ 5,832  $ 255,000
To a director of the Company  -  8,000
 $ 5,832  $ 263,000

The balances are non-interest bearing and are payable on demand.

(c) Included in accounts receivable is $7,790 (October 31, 2010 - $1,820) owing from Guyana Precious.
Guyana Precious has a cost sharing arrangement with GGI.

GGI has agreed to provide established logistical and geological support to Guyana Precious. GGI and Guyana
Precious have signed an “Area of Infl uence” agreement that restricts Guyana Precious from participating in
property acquisition and development within a defi ned area of GGI’s exploration and development activities in 
Guyana. In addition, GGI will have a “Right of First Opportunity” to acquire advanced stage properties in which 
there is a defi ned resource.

(d) On April 26, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with Guyana Precious for the sale of its Peters Mine 
and Aremu Properties in Guyana, for a purchase price of US$2,400,000, payable in cash at closing. The transaction
was completed on July 7, 2011. A gain of $1,515,019 was recorded for the sale of Peters Mine and Aremu Properties.

All the above related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange 
amount, which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

15. CONTINGENCIES
(a) The Company’s mining and exploration activities are subject to various government laws and regulations
relating to the protection of the environment. These environmental regulations are continually changing and generally
becoming more restrictive. As at October 31, 2011, the Company does not believe that there are any signifi cant 
environmental obligations requiring material capital outlays in the immediate future and anticipates that such
obligations will only arise when mine development commences.

(b) In July 2009, a former employee of the Company brought an action for wrongful dismissal in the amount of 
$200,000 which is being contested and defended by the Company. Accordingly, the fi nancial statements do not 
include any adjustments that might be required in the fi nal outcome of this litigation.

16. COMMITMENTS
The Company is party to certain management and consulting contracts with offi cers of GGI. These contracts contain 
clauses requiring additional payments to be made upon the occurrence of certain events such as contract termination
or change of control by the Company. The additional commitments for the top three executives range up to 
$3,598,000 as a result of the change of control. As the likelihood of these events taking place is not determinable, 
the contingent payments have not been refl ected in the consolidated fi nancial statements. The Company is also 
committed to approximately $1.3 million over the next 5 years for obligations under operating leases, purchases 
of property and equipment and expenses in conjunction with a defi nitive feasibility study. In addition, construction 
work on the mine site facilities and the mill is expected to begin immediately in the second quarter of 2012 and is 
scheduled to be completed over a period of 24 months which includes contingency.

17. SEGMENTED INFORMATION
The Company’s operations comprise a single reporting operating segment engaged in mineral exploration in
Guyana. As the operations comprise a single reporting segment, amounts disclosed in the audited consolidated 
fi nancial statements also represent segment amounts.

notes to consolidated financial statements (expressed in cdn. dollars)
for the year ended october 31, 2011
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Geographical Information

The Company operates in three principle geographical areas – Barbados, Canada and Guyana. Geographical
segmentation of the Company’s capital assets is as follows:

October 31, 2011 (000’s of dollars)  Canada  Barbados  Guyana  Total

Cash investments  18,516  2,469  754  21,739
Investments  21,848 -  -  21,848
Mineral properties/Fixed assets  142  -  146,909  147,051
Total assets  41,818  2,469  147,823  192,110
Total liabilities  4,790  -  -  4,790
Net loss  (6,472)  (292)  -  (6,764)
Capital expenditures  (94)  -  39,359  39,265

October 31, 2010 (000’s of dollars)  Canada  Barbados  Guyana Total

Cash investments  48,808  569  702  50,079
Investments  17,019  -  -  17,019
Mineral properties/Fixed assets  282  -  97,151  97,433
Total assets  66,941  569  97,954  165,464
Total liabilities  2,519  -  -  2,519
Net loss  (6,210)  (57) -  (6,267)
Capital expenditures  279  -  39,038  39,317

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(a) On October 28, 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with an unrelated private corporation for the 
sale of its Langis Mine property in Ontario, Canada, for a purchase price of $500,000, payable in cash, 3,055,555 
common shares of the private corporation, and a 2% net smelter royalty. In addition, the private corporation, after 
closing and following a subsequent fi nancing, that number of common shares of the private corporation equal to 
such further common shares of the private corporation that shall enable the Company to own 10% of all the share 
capital of the private corporation, on a fully diluted basis as at the time the private corporation becomes a reporting 
issuer will be issued to the Company. The closing of the transaction was completed on November 9, 2011.

(b) On November 18, 2011, the Company signed a Mineral Agreement (“MA”) with the Government of Guyana 
and has received the Mining Licence for the Aurora Gold Project. The MA details all fi scal, property, import-export 
procedures, taxation provisions and other related conditions for the continued exploration, mine development and 
operation of the Aurora Gold Project.

Signifi cant terms include:

• Mining royalty of 5% on gold sales at a price of gold of US $1,000/oz or less;

• Mining royalty of 8% on gold sales at a price of gold over US $1,000/oz;

• Corporate income tax rate of 30% and no withholding tax on interest payments to lenders; and

• Duty and value added tax exemptions on all imports of equipment and materials for all continuing
operations at the Aurora Gold Project, including the construction and operation of a planned port facility,
road and power improvements and the construction and operation of the mine.

The Mining Licence is the Company’s permit to build and operate the Aurora Gold Project. The document is valid 
starting immediately for an initial 20-year term with provisions for extension on application by the Company.

(c) The Company expects to report the defi nitive feasibility study “key fi ndings” in late February 2012 and the fi nal 
National Instrument 43-101 compliant technical report will be submitted within the following 45-day required
period and made available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and the Company website.

notes to consolidated financial statements (expressed in cdn. dollars)
for the year ended october 31, 2011
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